HOLLY TOWNSHIP
PROPOSED AGENDA
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
November 20, 2024 6:30 PM
Holly Township Hall (Upstairs)
102 Civic Dr. Holly, Michigan 48442

CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL: George Kullis Karin Winchester  Jennifer Ryan  Derek Burton
Ryan Matson  Michael McCanney Richard Kinnamon

AGENDA APPROVAL

CONSENT AGENDA:
I.  Approval of Meeting Minutes — October 16, 2024,
2. Approval of Financial Statement — October 2024,
3. Approval of Bills for Payment — November 2024,
4. Receipt of Routine Reports:
1. N.O.C.F.A. Minutes — QOctober 22, 2024.
2. Planning Commission Minutes — None.
3. Building Permits — October 2024.
4. Treasurer’s Annual and Quarterly Report — None.
5. Communications; None,

All items listed under “Consent Agenda™ are considered to be routine, and non-controversial, do not require discussion by the
Township Board and will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion, If discussion is desired on an item,
that item wiil be removed from the consent agenda and will automatically be moved to the last item under New Business,

PUBLIC HEARINGS: FY 2025 Community Development Block Grant Application.
PRESENTATIONS: Maner Costerisan, Holly Township Auditor.
REPORTS: TRUSTEES CLERK TREASURER SUPERVISOR

PUBLIC COMMENT on Agenda Items Only, Members of the public can address the Board, on agenda items
only, once recognized by the Supervisor. Comments are limited to a maximum of 3 minutes. The board may extend
this time by a majority vote. Prior to addressing the board, members of the public shall state their name and address
for the record. A second public comment is available after New Business for all other comments. Thank you for
your cooperation,

OLD BUSINESS ~ None.

NEW BUSINESS

. Approval of Holly Township Audited Financial Statement Report June 30, 2024,

2. Establishing Fees for Wireless Facilitics, Wireless Support Structures, And Utility Poles in Public
Right-Of-Way — Proposed Resolution 2024-25,

3. HAYA Member Appointment — Proposed Resolution 2024-26.

4. FY 2025 CDBG Appliication — Proposed Resolution 2024-27.

PUBLIC COMMENT
ADJOURNMENT






Holly Township
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
Minutes of October 16, 2024

CALL TO ORDER: Supervisor Kullis called the Regular Meeting of the Holly Township Board of Trustees
to order at 6:30 pm located at the Holly Township Offices (Upstairs), 102 Civic Drive, Holly, Michigan
48442,

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALIL:

Members Present: Members Absent: None
George A. Kullis, Supervisor

Karin S. Winchester, Clerk

Jennifer Ryan, Treasurer

Derek Burton, Trustee

Steve Ruth, Trustee

AGENDA APPROVAL
» Motion by Clerk Winchester to approve the agenda as presented. Supported by Trustee
Burton. A roll call vote was taken. All present voted yes, The motion carried 5/0,

CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Approval of Meeting Minutes ~ September 18, 2024
2. Approval of Financial Statement - September 2024
3. Approval of Bills for Payment — October 2024
4. Receipt of Routine Reports:
A. N.O.C.F.A. Minutes — September 24, 2024
B. Planning Commission Minutes — None
C. Building Permits — September 2024
D. Treasurer’s Annual and Quarterly Report — September 30, 2024
5. Communications: None

Supervisor Kullis requested amending the September 18, 2024 minutes by moving New Business,
Item 2 under Item 1 since both were addressed at the same time.

» Motion by Clerk Winchester to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. Supported by
Trustee Ruth. A roll call vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion carried 5/0.
»
PUBLIC HEARINGS: None
Supervisor Kullis stated that Commissioner Bob Hoffman will be arriving late and will address the
board under the second Public Comments section of the agenda.

PRESENTATIONS: None.

REPORTS:

Trustee Ruth — No report.
Trustee Burton — No report,
Clerk Winchester
* Absentee ballots are available.
o Early voting will be held from October 26 — November 3.






Holly Township Board of Trustees - Minutes of October 16, 2024 Page 2 of 2

Treasurer Ryan — No report .
Supervisor Kullis
+ There have been postings on Facebook regarding a Consumers Power outage affecting
tesidents of Holly Township. The Fire Chief and Police are not aware of a planned outage,
and the Township has not had any official notice. The Township offices made several calls to
Consumers Power to learn more, but nothing has been confirmed. They will disseminate the
information as soon as they have confirmation regarding the planned outage.

PUBLIC COMMENT (on Agenda items only).

Supervisor Kullis addressed the board and congratulated Trustee Ruth for 20 years of service (this is
his fast meeting) and presented him with a smali gift of appreciation for his service.

OLD BUSINESS: None.
NITW BUSINESS:
1. Small Cell Ordinance.

The Township has a cellular ordinance to regulate towers, but the ordinance does not cover “small
cell” installations. This ordinance is required so that the small cell devices are not arbitrarily placed.

» Motion Clerk Winchester to approve the Small Cell Ordinance, Chapter 26 —
Telecommunications. Supported by Trustee Ruth. A voice vote was taken. All present voted
yes. The motion .carried 5/0.

2. 2024-2025 Budget Amendments — Proposed Resolution 2024-22.

» Motion by Clerk Winchester to approve the 2024-2025 budget amendments, Proposed
Resolution 2024-22, Supported by Trustee Ruth. A roll call vote was taken. All present
voted yes. The motion .carried 5/0,

3. PA 152 Opt Out — Proposed Resolution 2024-23,

» Motion by Trustee Burton to approve PA 152 Opt Out, Proposed Resolution 2024-23,
Supported by Trustee Ruth. A roll call vote was taken. All present voted yes. The motion

4. Policies and Procedures Amendments - Proposed Resolution 2024-24

» Motion by Clerk Winchester to approve Policies and Procedures Amendments, Proposed
Resolution 2024-24, Supported by Trustee Ruth. A roll call vote was taken. All present
voted yes. The motion carried 5/0.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Commissioner Bob Hoffiman addressed the board.
ADJOURNMENT

Supervisor Kullis adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m.

Submitted by: Diane M. Hill, Recording Secretary

Karin S. Winchester, Clerk






a0 0 00°000°T 000 Q070 00T 000°T LNSWNESHNGNITY HOVHITH 600-098~G12-101
Q0BT 000812 000 Q0 08E 0o 0es’e NOILINL 3 S8AS ‘s3ng 000-0£8-512-101
£€° €L 817280°% 127018 z8'0%0°‘2 00°€2T’9 ALT¥ODES IYIDOS 000-STL-STZ-10T
£erge P9 pSE’ES PE"699°9 9E"LLY 97 00 ZEeD ‘08 SHIEYTIYS 000-20L-STZ-101
MO - §TZ adeg
06°T% ZF952 59 ST 0TS 'L 85759608 Q0 ZEB'S6 ¥OSIAYIINS - T.1 3deg TeIOL
Q0o 0070007t 0o o a6 00°000°T SASNEAXIT ® SNISGCOT 000-T98-TLT~I0T
00°0 00°000°T 0o 0 Q00 00°000°T INIHISHONEWITE TOVATIR 000-098-TLI-10T
joJe R 00°5LE’Z 00" ¢ 00°SZT 00-00s5°2 NOILINL % S90S ‘SZnd 000-0€8~TLI-T0T
£ETEE 8L°9Z28°Y 187 0FS AR R 00 06% ‘9 ALIEODES TYISOS 000-GSTL-TLI-TOT
£eoeg QoTooee 00" 00F 00700971 007008’y INIHAYd IO 140 HLTYIH 0C0-E€TL-TLTI-TOT
£e° g FOBGE’E PET69% 79 9ETLLY 9T 00" ZE0 08 SATYVIVS 000-Z0L-TLI-TOT
BOSIAMIINS - T.T 3deg
8Z°L BO"LFS LT 000 26 LLE'Y 00626 8T SHILSMEL JIHSNMOL - 10T 1dsd TEa0L
0070 acoos 0070 0070 007008 INEHISINEGRITY FO¥ITIN 000-098-T0T-T0T
0070 QU 000’¥ 0070 0070 00" 000°F NOIIINL % $€0S ‘SINA 000-0£8~T0T-T0T
556 80" LE6 00" 0 267 L6 00°SZ0°T ALTEADES TYID0OS 000-GTL-TDI-TOT
556 00702121 0070 00°082°1 CO0"00F‘ET SETUYIVS 000-Z0L-T0T-T0T
SHILSOEML 4IHSNMOL - T0T adsa
sain3Tpuadxy
vETGT 9L798Z°G8L"T FST0087TFRT ¥ FRSEeE 00°1£8780T°2 SENNIATY TYLIOL
FETGT 9L"98Z'SBL T ¥STG08°TRT FC¥PSICEE 00" TE8‘B0T'Z TREENED - 000 3dag telOl
000 GO EEE“8PF a0t o 00'0 00°€£C/8by dONYIVE QNOI HOWd HEISNYYL 06£-669-000-10T
000 (olvilv} 0070 000 ac" 0 SILASSY A0 FTYS 000-£69-000-10T
00" 0 00008 0070 000 00" 00e SNOISSINHOD 000-6L9-000-10T
6E719 ZLTDEB'T Q0°€T0°T 82'690°¢ 007 000°% SNOINYITIOS IH 000~8L9-000-T0T
GeTo 00"Z9LZZT a6 0 000 00 z9L'zzt INFRAYE ZONYAGY WIDON 000-LL9-000~-10T
€L EE 0C0002T 00700671 00°000°9 00000 ‘8T ASYET INENINYAZT ONIGTIINH 000-TL9-000-T0T
0070 00" 00T ‘929 0070 00" 0 00" 00T ‘929 ININISYNGHITE 1800 LdEQ ONITTIAN 000-049-000~-T0T
LZ 0% 997166 P& pEC T FE"eB2°9 007009 ‘2T LSTYRLNT 000-599-000-101
0£-68 00" €z 00" g 007261 00°ste STYINHIVH QHLNI¥d 2 SHTIJOD 000-T£3-000-10T
0b-99 00 0F8 0070 00°0%9°T 00T005°2 SHEA SONINNYI 000~-0£9-000-T0T
L0"0 0L79EL’S 0E" ¥ 0E"F 0O ThL'S SEHA SNINTN 000-629-000-10T
000 00"GSL 000 0o g 00 0SL SEEE SNINOZ 000-829~000-101
LT8T 00" 0671 ‘528 00T8%97°91T 007 8%2 91T 00 8E81YS SHNNEAZY JEYYHS HIVIS 000-FLS-000-T0T
00°0 00"0sT 2 06" G 0070 000812 NOLLVEITIHVYIS ALINOKWCD T¥d0T 000-£L5-000-T0T
0070 00°0 0o 0 Q00 600 QIACD - INY¥D TVEIaEd G00-825-000-T01
00" 0 Q0 26L S 00°0 006°0 00-zZeL’s D942 - INAWJOTIATA ALINOWHOD 000-225-000-T071
0ct o 00" 000‘E9 00-0 aco 00°000°E9 SEMI SESIHONVEI 000~ LLY-000-T0T
88766 08" L4 00" 0 027226 €9 007000 ve NOILDITICS "IOOHIS 000-8F¥-000-10T
88°08 88°9£9'6E Q€ FEE’TZ Z17£9£7°621 007 0007S6ST IFE IAILVELSININAY 000~LBY-000-T0T
0¢-0 Q070021 000 Q00 0000z’ LSTYIINI % SHAILTYNIA 000-S%5-000~10T
0070 000881 000 000 00-06s’t SEEI WWOH ZIISOW 000-%E¥-000-10T
000 00000 ‘88F 0070 060 00°00088% NOILOETIOO XYl LNTIELD 000-Z0¥-000-1071
TEIEANED - 000 2deg
sanUADY
aNQd TYEENIS - 10T pund
adsn {(TYIRIONEY) TYIEON (ASYIYDIHA) ISYIIDNI (TYINEONIY) TYHHON 139309 dIaNERY NOTLIIEOSEd HEERAN 1D
1908 % ADNYIYE ¥Z0Z/TE/0T HINOW FZ0Z/TE/0T §Z-%202
HETHYTIVAY HOd ALIAILDY ZONWIYE dLA
¥Z0Z/TE/0T ONIONZE (QOTI¥Ed drysumol ATT0H :gq
NIG +I98
ZI/ T rabeg dIHSNMOL ATIOH ¥0d JIHO&HY FUNIIANIAXE ONY FONTATY

WY Z£:60 ¥202/61/11






EETEE

86°60L°¢C

GLT8EE ZO688°T 00°590’% RLIG0DES TYID0S 000-STL-T9Z-10T
€E£7EE 9¢-gzZ¥‘se 9178z '% y9CTL LT D0"8ET‘ES SHEIYYIYS 000-20L-192~T0T
H0SIAGEANS LSISSY/LNAWNEDU0INT 900D - tog adsg
joJels] 00000 20T Go"0 000 0070007901 ONISSHSSY - L%g 3deg Te3oelL
00" 0 060°000 90T 00" 0 000 00" 000790T SEITAYIS UHLOTIINGD 000-Z08-LSZ-TOT
ONISSESSY - (L§z 3dsqg
24 IL°G5F 0% 89°186°F% 6T BEL 6T 00°S6L‘6S NOIIVMISININGY YEYNSYIEL - 5z 3dag Teiol
0070 GOT000°T (o 1eRllv] 00" 0 000001 SHESNEIXT ¥ ONIDAOT 000-T28-6452-T01T
00°0 a0"co0‘t 0ot o 00-0 goToe0°T INOWISYNIWNIEY IOVATIN 000-098-552-101
TE 9% 0z 26571 087 ELE 08°L06 00005’z NOILINL 3 S90S ‘Sang 000-0£6-652-101
£7£E 6170292 9% LEZE 1876087 00°0E6°E RITY0DES TYIDNO0S 000-GTL-652-101
£€°€E 007008 007 00T 00 00% 00 00zt ABYIYS ALOdEA 000-£0L-S5Z-10T
£8°¢g ZETERD 'EE Ty O0BT’% 89°TZL 9T 00697105 SHIEYTIYS 000-20L-$52-10T
NOIIVIESININAY MiMASYIIL - 6z adeg
86" 1% 28729919 GS'BLZL 81726682 007659706 HRUNSYIIL ~ £52 3deg TeIOL
0070 QG 00071 00" 0 0070 00°000°1 SASNIIXT 3 SNIDQOT 000~198-£52-T07T
0070 00 000°T 000 000 00°000°T INZHASHENEHITS IS5VITIH Q00-098-£52-T0T
9601 oo-sezz’e 0066 00 YLE 00°005°2 NOIZINL % SEAS “S3nG 000~0€8-£S2-T0T
gerge 8T"280°F 127018 z8'ovo‘e 00"€21°9 ALTHENDES IYIDOS 000-SIL-£52-T0T
gg-ee F9°FSE’ES ¥£°692°9 9E°LLD 9T 00°2€0 708 SEIUYIYS 000-20L~£52-T01
YTEASYRIL - €57 3dsqg
0L O G5 p68°Z 000 Sy Qe 00°GT6 2 MAIATY 30 Q¥¥0d - fpz 3dsg teiol
000 0o o 0070 000 0670 SASNIIXE % OHNISAOT 000-T98-L%2-10T
0070 00 0og 000 0" 0 Qo-aog ININISHAGNITT FOVTTIR 000-098-L¥2-10T
0070 00700077 00°0 00" 0 00°000°T NOIIINL % $SE€NS ‘S3ENC 000-0E8~LFZ-T0T
9z°1 G5TETT 000 SE°T 00°STT ALIMADAS TVIDOS 000-STL-L¥Z-10T
Lz I 00" I8F‘T 00°0 00°61 00"008°T SEIYYIYS 000-20L-L¥Z-10T
MEIATY 30 QUVOd - Lbz 3deq
bZTIE LT 0T6 LY ZZ 1Ek’s 68 F9L 12 00°5.9 69 NOTLVELSINIWAY X¥ITD - 912 3dag Te10lL
0070 00700071 0G0 00" 0 00°006°T SESNEAXE ¥ INIDAOT 000-198-812-10T
0070 Q00001 00" o 000 00" 000°T INIHISUNENTTY IOVETIN 000~098-9T2-T01
091 00°08v ‘2 0G0 Q07 0% 000052 NOIZIAL ¥ $40S ‘s3NG 000~0£8-912-T01
£E €L S1°880°¢ 96°G8E S8 E€PS T 00 zZE9 'Y KLId0DES TYID0S 000-STL-9T2~T0T
£e e 007008 00°00T 00-00% 0oT00z°T AUYIYS AINJEG 000-€0L-9TZ2-T0T
g£e-ge 96°T95'6¢€ CTARS A70E O T8L 6T 00 EVE‘6S SHIEVYTYS 000-20L-972-T01
NOIIVELISININCY X4%I0 - g1z 3dag
90728 28798619 GSTBLT L 81782062 007659 ‘06 AHITD - 6Tz 3dag TR0l
0070 00°000°T 0o 0 0070 00T000°T SHSNIIXE ¥ BNISUOT 000-198-512-T0T
saaniTtpuadxy
GNAA TYHENIS ~ 10T pund
azsn (IVWIONEY) TYREON (2SVANDIQ) BSYIUONI (TVITIONEY) TYREON II00NE JIINEHY NOILdTH¥DSHa MITHON 19
Logye % IONYIVE FZOZ/TIE/0T HINOW

ATIVIIVAY

AVEA rabeg

¥03 ALIAILOY

F208/1£/01 §2-%¢02
FONYTIVE diX

PZ0Z/1E/0T DNIONE doIgda

dIESNMOL ATTICH ¥04d L¥OdFEY FYALIANIIXE ONY¥ ANNIATY

drysumol ATTOH :€q
NISYH :I18sn
WY 2E:60 #Z0Z/ST/TT






(a[oRs] 2070 000 0070 000 Xida¥g 217404 - 9ff adeg Te3OL
060 0070 0070 Q00 00°0 NOILOFTELINOD FAD0ON 000-656-9£€-10T
ALIIYS 2ITdnd - gcg adag
6069 ZV B9T’SEE 76°008°'%Z 8G"GPZT 60 L 00 PIF'¥80°T SADIAGES TYVHENIS - ZLZ 3deg Te30l
00001 Q0" 0 [oloRo 007000001 007000001 AN INFRIAOUMANI G¥0d Ol SYTISNVEL Y0¥-S66-ZLE-TOT
007001 fa[oRs) 0070 007000 ‘08S 00°00005¢ aNnd IDHEroNd TYIIAYD OL 10¥-S66-ZLZ-10T
00" Q Q0723L'2Z1 00°0 000 00°29L'221 ONYAQY - QWS T¥Id4 Ol ¥EISNYIL 90Z-566-2LZ-T0T
000 0070 0070 0070 0070 AYTING TYLIAYD 000-TL6-2LE-10T
8T 16 06" 6LZ°T 000 00 tZe’s 00008 FT IINTIASNT 000~966-2L2-T0T
QL0 6SCLL'TT 0070 TF° €8 00" LS87TT SNOINYTITAISIH 000-566-2L2-10T
86°9 0S°215°¢9 0070 0S° L8P 00-000°L SEDJILON T¥SHT 000-006~ZLZ-T0T
SLv€g 9F Z9% ‘T 000 FSULES L 00"000°6 NOILINL ¥ SHAS ‘sHAA 000-0E8-2L2-T0T
000 0070007 L 00" 0 0070 00-000°L NOIIWOLATAOD FONWNICHO 000-0Z8-2L2-T0T
86°8% TL 96712 68°96TF 68 E0G°ET 00 000°sE FONYNIINIYH JELOJHNOD 000-218-2L2-T0T
6761 T1-£52°0% 05 €22’F 6879FL’'E 00000 0% AZNIOLIY 000-%08-2L2-T0T
F6"GT §Z2°189°1 SLTERT SLT8TE 007000’z SEOTAYES GELOVELINOD 000-208-242-T01
26711 007000°LT 000 go-ppe’e 00°00E’6T HOLIANY/ INYINGODOY 000~T08-ZLZ-TOT
LY e 8z €9L’LE £L°921°9 zLr9gz’'z1 00° 000708 SHSNEAXH DNIIVEE0 000-0FL-2L2~T0T
00-0 0070 00" 0 (olehde} 000 ONIONGE EEYS HITYIH INTWTEILEY 000~LEL-2LZ-TOT
90" 0% 96196 '8¢ 19°60579 Py 8€0°32 007000759 IONYENSNT 3 IT/HITYHH 000-0ZL-2LZ-TOT
65 EE 95 CET LT 98" ZvE ‘¢ PPUTLLET 00" 566 0% NOISNHE 000-0TL-2L2-T0T
SEOIAYIS I¥dENED - ZrLz adeg
000 000 0G0 0070 (alode} SESNIIXT ANIIVYEAO ¥au¥ - Loz 3daQ Teiol
00°0 000 000 0070 0070 SESNEAXE ONILVEId0 000-0FL-L92-10T
SEASNEAXE ONILYYEAC ¥ad¥ - L9z adeg
0L°8T LB GSZE kS GETTER‘T E0FLY 2T 00°00L*99 SEILYIACHd JIHSNMOL - $9z 3dag Teiol
9€°971 16°028°1% LY 089°T G0°6LTS GoTo000s SUIWAEY ¥ FONYNIINIVH 000-0£6-592-T0T
£6°LE LO"L0Z L 917059 £6"Z6L'Z Qo000 70T SEILITILA 000-026-592-101
Z¥ ze 66" LET S Z67005 T0°206°T ooTooL’s HNOHAITEL 000-058~59Z-T01
SHILYNA0OYd JIHSNMOL - g9z adag
99" 12 LO7LBOEY 66°L58°1 EEL ZI6°1T 007000755 SNOTLIETII - 29z 3dag Teiol
01" 82 LY BLE'FT 66°LS8 T £€°029°g (60°000°02 SHSNEIXE DNILVIZd0 000-0¥%L~292-10T
86°LT 00°80L’'8Z 000 007"262°9 00000 '5€ SATYYIVS NOIIDETT 000-80L-292Z-10T
SNMOILDOETE - zg9z 1dag
06 0E VE"GES'ER T6 99L ¥ 99°L90°6T 00°€0L 19 H0SIAMEANS LISTSSY/ININIDEOANT Faco - 19¢ a3dag TP30l
000 00000t 0070 000 007000°T SESNIAXE ¥ ONIDAQT 000-T98-192-101
0070 00°000°T 0G0 000 00°000°T INIHASYNENIZY FOVITIR 000~098-192-T01
00°G 00700572 0070 0070 007008z NOILIAL % SENS ‘S$End 000~0£8-192-101
saanitpuadxg
aNnd TYEENID - T01 pung
aasn ("TYIMONAY) TYRHION (ISYIIDIEA) FSYIUONI  (TYWMORIY) THNECON IEO0NE CHANINY NOIL4INDSAT HASHAN 19
509 % FONYTIYE ¥Z0Z/TE/0T HINOR PZ0Z/TE/0T 5¢-vZ02

ITIYTINAY

Z1/¢ rabeg

MOd ALIAILDY

JONYIYE QLA
YEQZ/TE/0T ONIANT cOI¥Id
JIHSNMOL ATIOH ¥0d L¥04Td FTENIIANTAKE ONVY EOANIATS

drysumo], ATTOH :4q
NISYE "X2sh
WY €€°60 ¥20Z/S1/11






29701 QG EPG ‘2 0070 00°Z0¢E 00°5¥8°¢ SIYEdAY 0 U9Y¥0d DNINOZ - #0L 3dag Tea0l
000 007008 000 0070 00°'00% INARESENERTTY AOVETIR 000-098~%¥0L-T0T
£1°02 00°86T‘T Q070 Q0 Z0E 007008 T NOILIAL % SEAS ‘S3na 000-0£8-%0L-10T
060 00°00¢€ 000 000 00" 00g SEDIAYIS TILOVEINOD 000-208-%0L-10T
0070 00" 0% 000 000 000y ALTEQDES TYIDOS 000-STL-F0L-TOT
0070 007508 90" 0 000 00°50% SETYVIVS 000-Z0L-%0L-T0T
STYHddY J0 Q¥v¥0d ONINOZ - ¥0L adsg
0070 00°¢6L°S 00°0 000 00'2Z8L°s LNIWNAOTIATA ALINOWWOD - £0L 3dag Telog
000 00°2Z6L°S 000 00°0 00°26L°S 9EAD - INIWAOTAANG ALINOWGHOD 000-956-£0L-T0T
INERIOTIAH ALINOWHOD - £0r adaa
1792 ZETIW0'S L9 LIL 89°0L8°2 00 ET6°0T YOIVTILSINIHAY 9NIROZ - zoL 23dsa Teaol
000 ac 008 0070 000 00" 008 SHSNIAXT ¥ ONIDAQT 000-198-20L-T0T
000 00008 0070 0070 00°00¢% INZHISHAGHITE AOVITIH 000-098-20L-T0T
Q0o 006700071 0070 000 00-oo0’t NOILINE % SHA$ ‘S3na 000-0€8-20L~T0T
£Eee 00°80% 00" 1% 00°F0E 00" 219 ALIENDES TYIDOS 000-STL-20L-TOT
ge-ge £TEEE’S L9°999 8979992 00°000‘s SATIYINS 000-Z0L-20L-T0T
WOITIISINIRGY ININOZ - z0L adsqg
ze'¢ 61°698°L6 00-szs 18°LSE’E 00 Lzz’I01 DONINNYTIE - 1oL 1ded TR30L
000 007005 00" 0 000 007009 INFHISENTAITE FSVITIH 000-098-T0L-T0T
8G°0T 00 LLS'E eTo Ry 00" €£Z¥ GO0 000’y NOILINL ¥ $4AS “S304 000-0€8-104L-T0T
00" 0 00000 ’se GoQ 0070 G0°000°S52 SEDIAYIS UFINIONG 000-218-10L-T0T
6Z2°¢C 00829 '8% 00" 0sY 0072LE’T 00" 000709 SHOIAYIS YINNYId 000-T18-T0L-T0T
B8 GZ 1€8°T 00"SL L8971 00000’z SEOTAYES TILOVIINOD 000-Z08-10L-T0T
TEVT b6 265 00" 0 9066 00" 269 ALTHEODES IWINOS 000~-STL-10L-T0T
CETFT 00" 0%L L 00°0 06°S62°T 00"SEC’E SETUVIVS 000~20L-T0L-TOT
ONINNYTIE - Tos 3daq
007 00T [olehdv} Q00 007 006°¢ 00°005°¢ SEIIAYES ALINAWWOD - 099 adea Tezol
007001 000 0G0 00700S°E 007005 ‘¢ IONYLSISSY HIACA CO0-%F8-099~10T
SHOIA¥ES ALINOWKWOD - 099 3adsg
50°9 8T"86T’ILT 0066 ‘L 78 L60°IT 007962281 SdOM Didnd - Te¥ adeq rtejog
00" 0 00005 LE 00°0 00" 0 00" 006" LE LJACOMd “ay XTICH "N 000-066-TF¥-T0T
00"0T 0F"9T1 8L 000 08°6L9 8 00°SEL"98 FATHOTHDS- " INIYA J¥od 000-928-1¥%¥-10T
(€0 8B) 8L7300"LZ 0070 (8L7900°2) 00700052 TIAYED IY0d 000-528-TF¥-10T
eJoldlv! 00000 ‘s 000 sTolll+! 00°000C‘S TOUINOD HIIWDYIHA 000-528~-THY-T0T
857127 00°STIV 6 00°G8s‘E 00°685°¢C 00°000“ET SAYA dONYITI 000-228-TkY-10T
09°g 00 08T FI 00° 03¢ 00-0F8 00°000“ST REALENED 000-128-T%¥-10T
S¥MOM DITdNd - 1¥v 3dsa
s3InaTRusdxy
ANAE TTYHINED -~ 10T pung
assn (TYNONEY) THIRS0N (ISYIIDEA) FSYTUONI (TYWMONAY)! TYHION 13900d QEANINY NOILATEDS3d YHENON TD

Ioad % AONYIVE ¥ZTO0Z/1E€/0T HINOW ¥Z0Z/1E/01 SZ-bE0zZ

ATAVIIVAY ¥0d ALIATIOW ADNYTIYE GLA
F20C/TE/0T ONIANT QOIvEd diysumsel ATTCH :dg
NIVYY X980
ZT/v 19besg JIHSENMOL ATTIOH ¥0d Id04Wd FYANITANTAXE ANY TOANTATY

WY 2£:60 VZ0OZ/GT/TT






P 9LT ELE

05°081°8%2°T

IONYIVE ONfE NI

ST 80% ‘9%2 ST 8Jr ‘9¥%2 PZ-CE0Z - STENIIANHAXI/SHANNTATY 40 L3N

08 08T8F T 05-08T‘8%2°T HONYTIYE JNOd oW

007007 91" ZTF ‘129 CE"HLBIES (8T 2T¥ '129) 000 SEINIIANTIIXE 3 SIONTATY IO LN

1: 3824 02 FLB'E9T’T 127926 1TL 0% 956 bE5 0oTIE8 ‘80T STIALTANIIXE IVIOL

FETST 8.°98Z°S8L"T PGS 008 THT PZ FESEZE oo TER’80T 2 SHANIATY TYLOL

TONQS IVEENED - IQT pundg

18:38 37 09 FLB'EIT'T 12°926 1L 0F 556 “Fb6 00 IE8’80T’Z SEENLTIANEAXE THIOL

saIniTpuadxg

amni TYEENES ~ T0T pung

aEsn ("TEREONEY) TYRION (ISVYEEDAT) ASYEEOINI  (TYNMONTY) TYHMON 19009 HENINY NOILITEDSIA JEEHAN TD
1004 3 AONYIVE PZ0Z/TE/QT HINOW ¥ZOZ/TE/0T §Z-¥z0e

HTHETIVAY ¥0d ALIAILOY FDNYIVE QLA

Z1/8 tebeg

720Z/TE€/0T ONIGNE a0ryad
dIHSNMOL ATIOCH 904 I¥04Fd HUAIIANEAXE NV

drysumorn ATTOH :gQ
NINY I@sq
WY ZE€:160 ¥Z0Z/ST/TT






(8B 126 "B1IT) S6°BE0EYVE JONYIVE gNAd aNE

(9% LZ2T70T) (9% LZT70T} FZ-£Z0T - SHYNLIIGNZAXI/SHONZAEY 30 IaEN
S6°BE0ERY S6TEEQ LYY JONYTIYE dNng "o3d

00°00T LETFEBTSS (L6 18) (LE FPEB TCE) 000 STENLIANEAXE 3 SAENNSATY 30 I4AN
S0 by 98°1Z6°00L £0TE8 FI-0F8°T1SS 0G°Z9L'gse 1 STENLIONEEXT 'TYIOL
00°0 £€Z796L7252°1 3070 LL°S 007Z9L’EsT T SHANSATYE TYIOL
TINIWSSESSY TYIDEAS ADNEDHIWNT aNY U¥Id - 907 pund
S0y 98°1Z6 '00L £0°28 ¥I°0¥8°185 00-zoL’zse T STINLIANAART TYIOL
S50°%7 98°T26°00L €08 Y1 0¥8°15S 00" 2342521 ADNIDIAWI ON¥ FdlZ - ggg 1dag Te3og
000 0Ot 000382 1JoRav 006 007000 ‘52 AONYTIYE ONOJ 0L HEISNYIL 06E-566-8££-907
00°0 00 2Z9L’'ZeT 0070 0o o 00729L72¢T ANnd TYNENTD 0L HEISNYIL TOT-566~8E£E-90¢
000 0o o 0070 000 000 AYILNO TYIIAYD 000-TLE~BEE-902
007 0% 00 008158 0070 007005156 0070007 €01 SADIAGES UTHEIDWYINOD 000-208-8€££-90¢
T0'%E 987659 €028 PL*O%E 00700071 SESNEXE HNTIVIZI0 000-0FL-8E£E-90%
ADNIADEIWE QNY TMId - gee adeg
SIANITPUIEKT
Q00 £2°96L°2521 9070 LL™g 00729425271 SHANIATY TYIOL
0070 00°28L72ZT oot o 0070 00"z9L‘zeT AONEDYENE gNY 3WIJ - gcc 1dsg Teaol
000 00°29L°22% 00° 0 00" 0 00°29L22T SONQE ¥IHIO WOWd SHIISNWHL 000-669-8££-907
ADNEOMENE GNY T¥I3 - gcg 3dag
0070 ET P66 °6ZT°T 900 LL"S 007000701 T TEENED - 000 adeg Te3ol
00" 0 (sToRlv] 00" 0 0070 0070 ADNYTIVE INAd WOEI $EISNYEL 06E-669-000-902
000 000 0o 0 000 000 ANOZ IVSENES WHO¥d MHIISNYEL TOT-66%~-000-902
0ot o 0070 000 0070 000 SNOANYTIADSIH Q00~8L8-000-202
85°0 €T ¥66 80" 0 LLS 007 000°T ISEYALNT Q00~595-000-%02
0070 00T000762T°Y Q00 Qoo 00°00062T°T NOILDETIOD INEWSSISSY TYInEds 000-TSF-000-902
THIINED - 000 3dag
SInuUSATY
LNIWSSASSY TYIOHAS ADNIOWANWE ANY T¥Id -~ 907 pung
adsn (IYREONEY) TYHION (ASYEEDEQ) ESYIEONI (TYMONEY) TYRMON LE900d (EONIENY NOILETUDSHT YHAHAN 1D
190d % ZONYIVE YZ0Z/TE/0T HINOW FZOZ/TE/CT SZ~¥Z02
ATETIVAY ¥Od AIIAILDY ADNYTIVE dLA
7Z0Z/T€/0T ONIANT ACI¥ad drysumor ATTCH :dq

NI9¥¥ *I8EN
Z1/9 rabeg dIHGNMOL ATIOH ¥0d 1904d¥Y A¥NLIONTIXHE GNY FONTATT WY ZE€:60 ¥202/5T1/T17T






29786k ‘65 FETBLE 88 HONY'IYE gQHNd aNd
ZLT085°¢6 ZLT085°6 PZ-£2027 - SHMHNLIONIIXE/SANNTIATY JI0 LN
FET8L688 FE"8L6 88 HONYTIVE ONAd Codd
007 00T (96 668} 070 957668 Qoo STEALIANIAXE % SHANIATI J0 LiN
0070 00 0C0’88 a0 0 0o o 00700088 SHEALIANZAXE TYIOL
20T FPT0CT LB 000 357668 0000088 SENNAATS TYIOL
ISQONAE 9d4 - £1IZ pung
0070 00°000°88 [N 0a°0 00°000°88 SHANLIANZIXE TVIOL
00" 0 0000088 000 0070 00°000 ‘88 934 - £1z 3deg Tea30L
000 007000788 0070 00" 0 00°000"88 SESNZAXE SHNIIWIHAO 000-0FL-£1Z-£12
234 - £1¢ 3adag
saxnaTpuadxy
201 Fr 00T L8 00 95" 6688 00000788 SHOANIATY TYIOL
0T F¥ 00T LB 000 G5 668 00000788 TLIENID - Q00 3dag Ie3ol
000 00" 009 ‘08 000 0090 00°C0% ‘08 AONYTIYE ONQS HOWE JHASNYYL 06E-669~000-£1¢
96768 PP 00T 000 9GS 668 00°000°T LSEEALNT 000-S39-000-ET2
0070 00 00F ‘g 00" 0 0070 00700k 'S SANNI 934 000-8LF-000-F12
TEIENID - 000 3dag
sanuansyg
SaNAd 93d - £TZ pung
azEsi ("IYINYONEY) TYWEON (4SYHENIIA} FSYTIONI (TUWNMONZY) TYIEON 199009 QHANTHY NOILATE2SEA UEEWAN T

I9ag % FONYTIVYE 7e0C/TE/0T HINOH FZ0Z/TE/0T Se-¥20e

HTAYTIYAY d40d ALIAILDY EONVYTYE QLA
YZ0Z/TE/0T ONIONE QOTdEd drysumol, ATToH :4Q
NIGY :I8s
2T/ L :abeg JIHSNMOL ATIOH ¥0I I¥0dd¥ HHNIIANIAXI CNY ANNTZATT

KY Z22:60 FPE0Z/G9T/1T






0y rIZL 86 6L°€LG"28 HONYTYY aNOg ONE

£L7692°GT £L7692°ST PZ-£207 -~ SEUALIONIANI/SEAONIANY J0 IaAN

L ELS'EZB 6LTELS T8 JONYIVE JNNd "534

00°00T (88°088) 00°0 887088 0070 SEHALIANIAXE % SHONIAFY JA0 IAN
0070 00°000700T 00" 0 0070 Q070007001 SHENLIANEAXE TYIOL
8870 Z1°61T1'66 00" 0 88°088 Q0000001 SEUONIATY TYIOL

TSONOI IOV CHIEW ~ pTZ pung

0070 0070007001 0070 00" 0 0070007001 SEMNLIANIAXT TYLOL

000 C0° 0007001 00°0 000 00 000°00T IOV OodlaEw - p1Z 2adeg Te30l

00" 0 000007001 00 o Q00 00 000700T SESNIGKI HNIIVIFIO 000-0BL~FTIZ-%1C

IOY OdI3R - 1z 3dag

saanjtpuadxy

280 Z1611°66 000 827088 0070007001 SENNIAEE TIIOL

8870 ZI'6TI1'65 0070 827088 0070007001 TYIEANTS - 000 3dag T30l

0070 00- 000’16 000 000 0000016 AONYIVE ONOd HOYI ¥EISNTYEI 06E-669-000-FT2

60°88 ZT1°61T 00" 0 887088 00 000°% LSTIALNT 000~599-000-FT2

000 00" 000’8 00°C 0070 00700078 SINIWAYd 1OY OWLAN 000-ZL5-000-F12

TYIERES - 00p adag

S2NUIADY

SANAZ ID¥ QYLEW -~ $1¢ pung

ausn (IVWEONTY) "TYIEON (ESYREDHA) ESYREONI (IVWHONHY) THWHMON I3900E A3aNIANY NOILETHDSEa WIARON 1D
19dad % AINYIYE yZ0Z/TE/0T HINOH pZ0Z/IE/0T SZ-7202

FTIVIIYAY ¥0I ALIAILOW FONYIVE dLA
PZ0Z/TE€/07 SNIONT qOINMEd drysumol ATTIOHE :d€a

NId¥¥® :3x=2sn
z1/8 cabeg dIHSNMOL ATTOH ¥0d IMOdEd FINLIANIAXRE ANY IONIATH WY 2t:60 PC0Z/ST/TT






YL TOBZLFT ST 8%g’1Ee AINYIVE ANAL QNE
(g6°98L°c8) (86°98L7¢c8) PZ-£Z0Z - STEANLIONIAXI/SIONTAZI JO LIN
ST SkE ‘122 ST7S%E ‘122 ADNYIVE ANOS -9Fg
007001 (£L5°TeL’'s) (22 TBE) LS 2ZL'E 00°0 SHEALIANTAXE % SAONTATY A0 1IN
971" 12Z 997289 21T ZSpI6’e FELTS 0L 00°002°pET SEYALIANZAXT TYIOL
16°LZ 607096 “€£0T 0z €258 16°6£2°0F 00002 FYT SEANIANY TYIOL
SONIQTINE ~ &bz pung
9112 98789 °¢1T ZETFIE’E FETLTS 08 00 00z TET SEEALIANSAXE TYIOL
91712 997289 °¢T1 Z5°FI6°8 e LIS 0E 007002 %P1 ROILDAASNI DNIQIIAL - [L£ adsg Telol
a6 90 Q0008 [Jo R 0070 00" Q0% SNOINYTIADSIH Q00~SS6-TLE-6VE
0070 Q07007 99 0070 0070 00°001799 aNQd TVEEINES 0L 3040 904w 000-2¥6-TLE-6FZ
£EEE ac o002zt 00008t 0070009 00" 00078T INFWAYd HASYIT 000-TP6-TLE~EFT
000 007001 00°0 0070 00°0071 INERESENGHIEY A9¥ATIR 000-098-1LE-672
0070 00008 00" 0 00°0 00" G0% NOILIAL ® $4AS ‘s$30g 000-0E8-TLE-6FC
9¢762 0r"8EZ’Y 08" LSL 09 T19L'T 00°GO0 ‘s ¥OLIEASNI ONIFHNTJ 000-8G8-TLE~6FZ
57 8¢ 0Z°9%1‘9 08°588 08 £sa’s 00000701 YOLDFASNI TYDINYHDIR 000-L0B-TLE~6RT
£6 8% 09°580°% 0062671 0y BI6°€C 0070008 WOL2TASNI TYOIEILOITR 000~908-1LE-6%2
09°€5 9% "66G°TT ZE'198°E PST00F‘ET 007000752 YOLDEISNI 9HNIQIINg 000-S08-TLE-6FZ
L8761 00TEIF ‘8 0070 00748571 00°000°0% SHASNIZXKE HNTLYEEI0 000-0FL~TLE-6BDE
000 0c-0 a0 0 000 Q0" 0 HONYHASNI 54 IT7/HITYEH 000-02L-TLE-BFZ
000 0070 00" 0 Q0" 0 0070 ALTENDHES TYIDOS 000-STL-TLE-6BFZ
00" 0 0070 0670 00" 0 0c 0 NOISNIJ 000-0TL-TLE-6F2
0070 0070 0070 000 0670 SEINYIVS 000-20L~TLE-6FZ
NOIXDEASNI SNIGIINE - 1.£ 3deg
s3aIn3Tpuadxy
16°LZ 607096 “€0T 0Z€25'8 16°6E£2 0% 007002 ‘%51 SEONTATE TYIOL
T67LZ 607096 ‘€01 0Z'¢25’8 T& 6ET 0% 00 00Z7'%%T TTIENID - 900 3dsg Teiol
000 00°006“0F 0070 0670 00 006 °0F IADNYIVE UMOd WOEd YHASNYIL 06E-669~000-61Z
90 8g 66 EF0‘Z 0070 1079521 0otooe’s LSEdEINT 000-599-000-61Z
86°8¢ 0T°%10°18 0Z2-£25°8 08°£86°8¢ 0070007007 SLIWYgAd ¥ SESNEDIT 000~-8L5-000-6F2
TYIINZD - 000 aded
SeNudADY
DNIQTINE - 6%Z pungd
g3sn {TYIIONEY) TYHEON (ISYME0IG) FSYHUONI (' TUWEONTY) TYHION 199009 dIaNINY NOILdI¥DSHA JIGHON 1D
1oag % FONYIYE PZ0Z/TE/0T HINOW vZ0Z/1e/01 GZ-%702

FTEVTIVAY

Z1/6 :abeg

¥0d ALIAILDY

JONYTYE dIA

PZ0Z/TE/0T ONIONE QOI¥dd

dIHSNMOL ATIOH ¥0d I¥OdEd FEYNLIANAIXE ANV HAONIATA

drysumo], ATToH :€g
NIODI fx9sq
WY ZE360 PE0Z/ST/1T






78 ZSEZTIET TO LTI 6L9 FONYTYS aNnd gNd

9T F18°0L 91p18°0L FPC-£202 - SEMNLIUNIEXE/SAANIATI 40 LAN

T0-LTIT’6L9 TOLIT 6LY IONYTIYE aNd CoFdg

00°00T  {S9-1ZE‘T9¢) 00-¢ G9°TZL’186G 000 STINITANEAXE ¥ SIONTATE IO AN

00°0 00 000°0F0 1T 0070 0o-o 00°000°0F0 T SMENLIGNIdXE TYIOL

L§ €S SET8L9°8LY 00" 0 §9°IZL’186 00 000°0F0 T SENNIATE TYIOL

TANMA INIWEACWANWI IYLIAYD - 10F pung

0070 00000 0F0°T 0070 000 007 000‘0F0 T STIALIGNTIXT TYLIOL

0070 00" 000°0F0 T 0070 0070 00000 0VD T INIWNIAQEIRI TYIIAYD - 106 3dag Tezol

00" 0 000 00 0 00" 0 000 FONYIVE ANOd O JHISNYYL 06£-566-T106-T0F

00" G 00 000°0F (sTeRdls] Qoo 00T 000°0Y% 103009d AY¥AISHAY 000-FLE-T06-TO0F

0o ¢ 007000700071 00"0 sJa R} 000000001 SHSNIAXIT ¥ SHOIIAJES TIVH JIHSNMOL 000~£L6-106-T0V

Q0" 0 0o 0 oo 00" 0 600 AYILAC TYLIIYD 000~-TLE-TO6~TOF

060 0070 o[ely; 00" 0 6oo SOCENYTIIISIN 000~656-106~T0F

INIRIACHANI TY¥IIAYD - T06 adaq

000 000 000 0070 000 TREANIS - Q00 3dsg P30l

0070 Q070 0070 Q00 0ot o AYIINO TYLIAYD 000~TL5-000-T0%

TYIENED - 000 adeg

SINITRPUIERT

LB ES SC€°8L9'8LY 0070 S3°TZE 1958 00°000°0F0°T SHANIATI TYIOL

LETES SETBLY“BLY 000 S8 TZE 196 007 000°0F0°T TYIENID - 000 3dag Teloz

(s1¢Dd} 00009 '8LY 00° 0 000 00009 78LY ADNYTYE dNAS WOYI YHISNYHEI 06E-665-000~T0¥

00" 00T 0070 60" 0 00" 000’055 00" 000 0Gs SONNI YZHIC WOYNI SYLISNYYL 000-66%-000-T0%

TE66 GE"8L 0o o GO TZETI 0O 00FTT LEEYAINT 000-599-000-T0%

TYEENED - oo 3dag

SINUIADY

NI INERIAQYIHI TYLIAYD ~ T0p pung

assn (TYERNONEY) TYIHON (ISYEE0HO) ESYHNONI (TYHEONIY) TYRION I3900d aEANENY NOTIATHDSHG HIIHAK IS
19049 % TONYIVE PZ02/TE/0T HINOW

ETAIIYAY

ZI/01 tabeg

dod ALIATILOY

PZOC/IE/0T
JONYIVE QLA

dTHSNMOL ATIOH ¥0Z IMO4EY TENLIGNIAIXE ANV HAONIATS

sZ-vzZoz

¥Z0Z/1€/0T ONIUNT dOI¥Ed

drysumo] ATTOH i€q
NIYYE 13980
WY 2£:60 FZ0Z/ST/1T






0£° 8L 0BT TETGTE'T6E AONYTIYE gNAd aNF

(69 £587LPT) {S9°268 LVT) PZ-£20Z - SHYALIONIAXS/SHONTATY JI0 LEN

ZE°STE'16E ZETGTE 168 FONW'IVE QRAI "OHY

007 00T (g9 zze 'Ly (00°000‘2E) E9°ZZELYT 00" 0 SHENLIONIAXT % SHANTATY JO IHEN

EFTTIT £S5 ZVEV8F 00-000zE LY ETIS2Z9 00°95879F¢S SHINIIANTIIXT TYIOL

LET8E 06 6T0"LEE 000 0T-2£8°602 00958 ’8¥a SHNNIATY TYIOL

TANNE INYED TYIIAYD - £0F Pung

CF 1T IR 208 3:34 00°000°2e LETEIS'EY 00°9$8°9%G STINIIANZAXE T¥IOL

€P 1T £5°Z%C'V8Y 00°000°2¢ LB E15728 007398975 AYTINO TYLIAYD - £06 3dea Tejol

00" 0 00" 0007cz 000 600 ou-ooo’se NOII¥ANOOA ALINANKOD 000-B8LE-E06-£0F

00" G 00° 188 0vE 000 000 Q0" TBB‘0OVE N3 ISOEL $AVER NETID - AYILAQ TYLIJYD 000-LLB6-E06-C0F

LT %E £5°T9% 02T 00 000’2E LE"ETS 20 00°SL6°Z8T LNYIS LIOH SETHYHD ~ AYILAO TYLILYD 000-946-£06-£0F

AYILNO TYWLIAYD - €06 3dag

saInaTPpuadxy

LE"8E 06 6T0°LEE 00" 0 01°9¢R’60¢2 0C"958°9FS SHEANFATE TYIOL

LE"8E 06°610LEE 00" 0 0T 9E8760T 00°95879F¢ IYIENED - 000 deg Te30]

000 00°9G6ZcES G0t o 0070 0095z ’ces IONYIVE QNOI HO¥d SHISNWEl 0BE-669-000~-€0F

00001 (00 000c2) 000 00" 000'cE 00°0 NOIIVANACT AZINNWNOD 000-6L9-000-£0%

000 0070 Coto 0070 G0 0 SARAI INYESD ISA¥NI IAFRNATD THI 000-SL%-000-E0%

00C0T  {¥0"GLE6°TBT} 000 FOTSLE 28T GO0 SUNDE INWVED IIOW SETIYHD 000-FLS-000-E0T

6g°82 ¥6 8EL’E 00" 0 907 198°¢ Q0 009l LSHIALNT 000-59%-000-£0%

TYIENED -~ 00 3dsa

sanusaalay

aNRE INYED TYIIAYD - £0F PUna

azsn (TYWIONEY) TYRION (ESYTEDIC) BEYEMONI (IVREONEY) TYRION LADUNE qRINIRY NOILdI¥DSHa HEAHON 19
1ogd % IONEIVE YZ20T/1E/0T HINCW ¥Z02/1£/01 SZ-vz0e

TTEVIIYAY

gi/11 sabed

¥04d ALIAIZOY

AONYIYE dLA

PZ02/1€/0T DNIONI dOI¥E4

drysumol ATIOH :8q
NIV :I28Q

dIHSNMOL ATICH Y04 I¥04dTd FIALIGONIAXE GNY AnNIAEY W¥ 2€:60 FPZ0Z/ST/TT






06°9.L0°596°2
8907 0SS PSTE

207085 98T ¢
40088 ¥ST'¢E

007007 S0°E£99'TSE 50 T0F ‘LE (507€£99"16¢) GO0
95762 G9 126 0BL E 2L7226°211 SE°LZB’68S'T GO 6%t 08E’
10°€E CL 98BS ZPT ¥ 08 £ZE0ST oE-FsT’eET’T 0G-6¥L’08E"
IO TZE'£9T

Z8° 88719 Z8°r88°T19
00001 (61°9£p 'T0T) 00" G 6198 10T 0G0
00" Q 00" 001001 0c G V10 R] Q0001001
€E°TOT (6T79£€'T) oc-o 6I°9EY “T0T 00°00T 00T
0070 Q00" 06T ‘00T 00°0Q 00°0 00" 00T 00T
0070 00" 00T ‘00T 0070 00°0 00°00T'00T
co"o 00°00T°COT 00 o co"0 00" H0T 00T
€E°1I0T {6T°9E€'T) 00" 0 6T 9EF'I0T £0°00T00T
EETTOT (61°9¢£°1) Q0" ¢ BT 9€F‘TOT 00001001
0co Go 0 goto go"0 00
00°00T 0o e 00°0 CoOT00000T 00T000 00T
GL79EP T (§1°92£°T) ac-o 61°9EF T 00-0cot

SANAE TTY - FONYIWE CNNJ ONE
SANAA TIY - FONYIVE UNOE 93T
STEALIANEIXY 3 SIONZANY I0 JAN
SANNI TIV - SETENLIANZEEXE TYIOL
SANNA TIV - SEANIARY IYICL

HONYTYE CNOd ONE

PC-€20Z - STUNLIANIAXH/SEONIATY 320 LIEN
IDNYIVE dNfE "93Fd

SHINLICGNAXT ¥ SHANIAHYE A0 IIN

SHINLIONIAXE TYLOL
SEONIATY TYI0L
CSINARHEACEENT a¥0d -~ H0F pung

SHENLIONIAXT TYIOL

aNns INERIACYEWI J¥90¥ - §0F 3dsg Teael

HONYIVE dNAI OL S3ISNYEL 06E-S66-70F-F07
N3 INEREACHAWI G¥W0od - voF 1dag
saangtpuadny

SHANIATT TYIOL

TYIERED - 000 3d2d Te3I0L

HONVIVE ANAA WO¥I JHASNTIL
aNOI TYGENED WOHd dHASNYEL
LSEIHINT

0BE-665-0006-F0F
T0T-66%-000-F0F
000~599-000-F0Y
TYIENED ~ 000 3daq
gonuanayg
SINIHIAQYIWI a¥0d - BOF Pung

JqIsn (TYHEONEY) THWEoN
1od49 3 IONYIVE
ITAYIIVAY

Z1/21 :ebeg

(ASYEEIHA) HFSYIMONI
yZ0C/1E/0T HINCH
H0d ALIALLDY

("TYWEONEY) TWHEON
¥Z02/1E/01
HONYIYE QIX

LI2aNg JEANINY
§¢-v20c

P20Z/1E/0T SNIANE Q0Id"d

dIESNMOL ATIOH ¥0J I¥OJHY FUNLIGNIAIXE ANV ANNIATY

NOILATIDSHET HIGRON 1D

diysumo], ATTOH :g¢
NI¥gx 198
WYZ 22£:60 PZOZ/STI/TI






11/15/2024 INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR HOLLY TOWNSHIP
POST DATES 10/17/2024 - 11/20/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED
BOTH OPEN AND PAID
GLNumber InvoiceLineDesc _____InvoiceDescription Amount
Fund 101 GENERAL FUND
101-000-018-000 OLSHA SERVICES GRANT EXPENSE RUFUNDABLE ~_ 1,345.50
1,345.50
Dept 253 TREASURER
101-253-830-000 OCTAMEMBERSHIP DUES MEMBERSHIP DUES/SUBS ! 50.00
50.00
Dept 255 TREASURER ADMINISTRATION
101-255-830-000 DUES, SUBS & TUITION ~ SEP-24 274.80
101-255-830-000 OCTA MEMBERSHIP DUES MEMBERSHIP DUES/SUBS _50.00_
324.80
Dept 262 ELECTIONS
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 590.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTIONSALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 315.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 330.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 600.75
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 288.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 405.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 370.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 366.75
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 369.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 162.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTIONSALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 315.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 288.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTIONSALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 288.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 366.75
101-262-708-000 ELECTIONSALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 288.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 306.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 340.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 327.50
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 333.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTIONS 369.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 320.00
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 294.75
101-262-708-000 ELECTION SALARIES ~ NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION 306.00



101-262-708-000
101-262-708-000
101-262-740-000
101-262-740-000
101-262-740-G00
101-262-740-C00
101-262-740-000

Dept 265 TOWNSHIP PROPERTIES
101-265-850-000
101-265-850-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-920-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-930-000
101-265-2306-000
101-265-930-000

Dept 272 GENERAL SERVICES
101-272-740-000
101-272-740-000
101-272-746-000
101-272-740-000
101-272-740-000
101-272-740-000
101-272-7406-000
101-272-740-000
101-272-801-000
101-272-802-000
101-272-804-000
101-272-804-000
101-272-804-000
101-272-804-000
101-272-804-000
101-272-804-000
101-272-804-000
101-272-816-000

ELECTION SALARIES
ELECTION SALARIES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES

NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION
NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION
NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION
NOV-24 GENERAL ELECTION
PARKING & PRECINCT SIGNS
ELECTHON EQUIPMENT SUPPORT

OPERATING EXPENSES - EELECTION NOTICES

TELEPHONE
TELEPHONE
CONSUMERS ENERGY
CONSUMERS ENERGY
CONSUMERS ENERGY
CONSUMERS ENERGY
VILLAGE OF HOLLY
VILLAGE OF HOLLY
RUGS

SEP-24

0CT1-24

0CT-24 102 CIVIC DR

OCT-24 4092 GRANGE HALLRD
OCT-24 13409 N. HOLLY RD
OCT-24 13465 N. HOLLY RD
0C7-24 102 CIVIC DR

OCT-24 4092 GRANGE HALLRD
0CT-24 OFFICE RUGS

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS OCT-24 OFFICE CLEANING

RUGS

NOV-24

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS OCT-24 BOILER REPAIR

MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS JUN-24 ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE/F

OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
ACCOUNTANT/AUDITOR
CONTRACTED SERVICES
ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY

SEP-24

OCT-24 POSTAGE METER LEASE
OCT-24 WATER COOLER
OCT-24 GAS, AND MISC
NOV-24 TRUSTEE GUIDES
OCT-24 POSTAGE METER
0OCT-24 GENERAL FUND CHECKS
OCT-24 COPIER

OCT-24 AUDIT 2024

0C7-24 MEETING MINUTES
NOV-24

NOV-24

NOV-24

NOV-24

NOV-24

NOV-24

NOV-24

COMPUTER MAINTENANC SEP-24

315.00
321.75
1,545.99
345.69
386.65
2,500.00

14,016.58

500,92
501.09
267.26
139.89
10.45
9.15
59,72
37.06
280.47
500.00
328.44
229.00
3,335.80

6,199.34

785.28
66.45
74.90

205.84

129.00

507.00

145,58

142.18

12,500.00
75.00

465.00

379.50
82.50
49.50
33.00

1656.00

145.50
28.39



101-272-816-000
101-272-816-000
101-272-830-000
101-272-800-000

Dept 441 PUBLIC WORKS
101-441-822-000
101-441-826-000

Dept 701 PLANNING
101-701-811-000

COMPUTER MAINTENANC COMPUTERS CONTRACT
COMPUTER MAINTENANC OCT-24
DUES, SUBS & TUITION  CHAMBER MEMBERSHIP
LEGAL NOTICES OCT-24

CLEANUP DAYS FALL CLEAN UP DAY
ROAD MAINT.-CHLORIDE CHLORIDE PROGRAM

PLANNER SERVICES SEP-24 PLANNER

Fund 206 FIRE AND EMERGENCY SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

206-338-740-000
206-338-740-000

Fund 249 BUILDING
Dept 371 BUILDING INSPECTION
249-371-805-000
249-371-805-000
249-371-806-000
249-371-808-000
249-371-867-000
249-371-807-000
249-371-808-000
249-371-808-000
249-371-941-000

OPERATING EXPENSES  0CT-24 2413 BELFORD RD WELL HYDRANT
OPERATING EXPENSES  0CT1-24 4485 NELSON SCOTT DR WELL HYDRANI

BUILDING INSPECTOR  OCT-24 10/01/24-10/15/24
BUILDING INSPECTOR  NOV-24 10/16/24 - 10/31/24
ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR OCT-24 10/01/24-10/15/24
ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR NOV-24 10/16/24 - 10/31/24
MECHANICAL INSPECTOFOCT-24  10/01/24 - 10/15/24
MECHANICAL INSPECTOF NOV-24 10/16/24 - 10/31/24
PLUMBING INSPECTOR OCT-24 10/01/24 - 10/15/24
PLUMBING INSPECTOR  NOV-24 10/16/24 - 10/31/24
LEASE PAYMENT OCT-24 BUILDING DEPT RENT

2,875.50
28.39
165,00

19,672.52

3,685.00
43,398.00

1,839.83
240.96
1,714,80
553.20
291.00
438.00
51.00
130.20
1,500.00

6,758.99

6,758.99

Fund 401 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Dept 501 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
401-901-973-000

NEW TWP HALL EXPENSE: SEP-24



991.23

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND 89,041.74
Fund 206 FIRE AND EMERGENCY SF 74.59
Fund 249 BUILDING 6,758.99

Fund 401 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTF 991.23

Totat For All Funds: 96,866.55



NOCFA Board Minutes, October 22, 2024

North Oakland County Fire Authority
Regular Minutes of October 22, 2023

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: Chairperson Kullis called the regular meeting of the North
Oakland County Fire Authority Board to order at 6:30 p.m. at Rose Township Offices, 9080 Mason St.,

Holly, MI 48442

Members Present:
Kullis
Miller
Winchester
Stilwell
Chief Weil

Members Absent: Scheib-Snider

3. AGENDA APPROVAL:

Motion by Winchester to approve the agenda as presented. Supported by Miller, The

motion was carried by a 4/0 voice vote.
4. CONSENT AGENDA:

a. Approval of meeting minutes - August 27, 2024
b. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes — October 7, 2024

c. Financial Reports: General Fund & Capital Fund Revenue & Expense Year to Date

Checking Account as of: 9/30/24 $38,880.36
Statement Savings Account as of: 9/30/2024 $363,846.22
Equipment Replacement Money Market Account as of 9/30/2024 $481,961.46
Accounts Receivable: - MEDICAL as of: 9/30/2024 $105,603.44
Accounts Receivable: - FIRE as of 9/30/2024 $921.00
Aging Accounts Turned Over to Collections Allowance as of: 9/30/2024 $109,113.62
Cost of Payroll: Sep 2, 2024 — Oct 22, 2024 $119,918.17
Bills for Payment Total: 9/24/2024 through 10/22/2024 $49,675.69

Motion by Winchester to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Supported by Miller.

The motion was carried by a 4/0 roll call vote,

5. PUBLIC COMMENT - ON AGENDA ITEMS ONLY: None

Page 1|3







NOCFA Board Minutes, October 22, 2024

6. PRESENTATIONS — None

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

a) New Fire Chief’s Contract Negotiation

A copy of the Offer of Employment letter for Matt Weil was enclosed in the board’s packet for
their review. There were no questions.

Motion by Winchester to approve the Offer of Employment letter for Matt Weil. Supported
by Miller. The motion was carried by a 4/0 roll call vote.

8. NEW BUSINESS: None

9. REPORTS — including monthly incident data for August 2023

[l Chief’s Report

o}

OO0 O 00O

C 0O 0 O0O0oO0

There were 111 runs in August; average response time was 11:28 (well below the
OCMCA requirement)

Calls were pretty evenly split between the Townships

Work on the new truck (Squad 1) is progressing nicely

Tac 1 is in for repairs

Rescue 4 is getting brakes and an inspection

Engine 3 (the newest) is getting new brakes

[-75 construction is wrapping up; there will be a “lessons learned” meeting with
MDOT to recap before next year’s project begins

Open shift in September — 2%

New hire will be attending paramedics class under a letter of agreement

Station 3 roofing is almost complete

Access control (key pad project) is in progress

Auditors have finished; revealed need to update the investment policy

Need policy for quick response when the Chief is called for mutual aid for natural
disasters in locations outside the NOCFA service area

Assistant Chief Seal’s report:
" O sets of fire gear have been received (purchased with grant)
Lt. Blaska’s report:
= Nearly 100 attended the open house
* The free smoke alarm and CO detector program is still being utilized
» Participated in the following events: Holly First Responders, Diehl’s, Holly
Car Show; Holly Homecoming Parade; HHS Skilled Trades Night; upcoming
Fall Family Fun Night at Rose Pioneer
Chief Smith’s report on RenFest:
» 2 people on site during festival; conduct hourly rounds
» [ssues remain that have developed over the years and will take substantial
effort to resolve
»  Urgent issues — will meet with Holly Township planner to address in
ordinances
®  Water supply remains to be an issue

Page 2|3






NOCFA Board Minutes, October 22, 2024

LI Firefighter’s Association — BreAnne Gugin
o This year’s golf event was a success
o 2025 golfevent is scheduled
o Boot drive in early December — held in conjunction with Dickens Festival
o Planning to hold the banquet earlier

(I Holly Twp
o Consumers Energy planned outage was not communicated to local authorities and the
community; best efforts to obtain accurate information were difficult
o MSP were unable to make the NOCFA open house — possibly related to
underfunding and understaffing issues
o Jerry Walker, Holly Village Manager, informed Holly Township that Narcan will be
available at the Police Department; efforts to place at NOCFA as well

[I Rose Twp
o Audit started 2 weeks ago
o Supervisor Scheib-Snider held an open house at the historic town hall
o Lot of interest from voters; early voting starts Sat, Oct 26; lots of absentee ballots
L Citizen at large — no report
10. PUBLIC COMMENT - General

Dan Johnson, 8635 Tipsico Trail commented

11. ADJOURNMENT: Chairperson Kullis adjourned the meeting at 7:42 pm.

Submitted by: Diane Hill, Recording Secretary

Page 3|3






Revenue Totals Report

11/15/2024

Transaction.DateToPostOn

Between

10/1/2024

12:00:00 AM AND 10/31/2024 11:59:59 PM

Record Type Exact Type Category Description Entries Amount
Permit Building Commercial Commercial Base Permit Fee 1 10¢.00
Permit Building Residential PLAN REVIEW 4 260,00
Permit Building Residential Res, Garage 1 79.65
Permit Building Residential Res, New Mobile Home in Park 6 450.00
Permit Building Residential Res, Porch/Deck/Balcony i 45,00
Permit Building Residential Res, RE ROOF 1 288.00
Permit Building Residential Res, Remodel 4 592.30
Permit Building Residential Residental New SF 561.25
Permit Building Standard Item Base fee 11 825.00C
Permit Electrical Inspection New Mobile Home in Park 2 130.00
Permit Electrical Inspection NEW SF DWELLING UP TO 200 AMPS 1 275,00
Permit Electrical Inspection RESI AND COMM 2 INSPECTIONS 1 140.00
Permit Electrical License Fee Registration - Electrical 6 96.00
Permit Electrical Service Service, 15 thru 200 amps 2 70.00
Permit Electrical Service Sexvice, above 600 amps 1 100.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item A/C Unit 3 30.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Circuit 3 210.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Feeder, per 50 feet 1 120.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Fixture/Device 1 10.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item Motor, 1 - 20 KVA/HP 4 60.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item NEW SF DWELLING UP TQO 150 AMPS 1 250.00
Permit Electrical Standard Item PERMIT BASE FEE 13 975.00
Permit Electrical Standard TItem Power Outlet 2 720.00
Permit Mechanical Cooling CENTRAL A/C UP TO 8 HP 4 180.00
Permit Mechanical License Fee Registration - Mechanical 1 15.00
Permit Mechanical Piping Piping, Gas, per Outlet 3 24.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item FUEL BURNING EQUIPMENT 1 90.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item Humidifier 1 15.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item LPG Tanks Permit Fee 1 50.00
Permit Hechanical Standard Item Permit Base Fee 16 750.00
Permit Mechanical Standard Item Water Connected Appliance 2 16.00
Permit Mechanical Tank TANK, AGROUND i 75.00
Permit Plumbing License Fee Registration - Master Plumber 1 15.00
Permit Plumbing Sewer/Drain Drain, Floor 1 8.00
Permit Plumbing Sewer/Drain SEWERS, EACH 1 5.00
Permit Plumbing Sewer/Drain Sump Pump 1 10.00
Permit Plumbing Standard Item Fixture 1 24,00
Permit Plumbing Standard Item Permit Base Fee 3 225.00
Permit Plumbing Standard Item Water Service 1 15.00
- Permit Zoning Complian Zoning Compliance Zoning Compliance 1 25.00
Population: All Records



Totals 105 B,523.20

Population: All Records

Transaction.DateToPostOn Between 10/1/2024
12:00:00 AM AND 10/31/2024 11:59:59 PM



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(with required and other supplementary information)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Costerisan




TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.......commmemmmmmsscasssmsssssssisssssssssssinssessesssssesssesset ssts sttt bisisstsismtsisttsssmssissnsssns. 173
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS .oorcereensmssssesmsssrsesssmsmssssss s ssssssssmsssessissssastssssssas s 477
Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position...u.
Statement Of ACHIVITI 5. i i —————————————

Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet.... - w1l
Reconciliation ﬂf the Govemmental Funds Baiance Sheet to the Statement of Net Posmon R I
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ..o 13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of ACtivities..immsmimmreommann 14
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position...
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Posmcn

e 15
S— I o

Notes to Financial Statementis ..o e 17-34

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION coocvossoinmmissmmsssmssssssssmmsssssscssesssssesssienmassmssmssisisssississssssssssssssssssssessssss 30

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund .., o 36
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Fire and Emergency Fund... TN ¥
Schedule of Changes in the Township’s Net OPEB Llabihty {Asset) and Related Rahos 13
Schedule of Township Contributions - OPEB... ST NOPPTOROFTOOR: )|
Schedule of iInvestment Returns - OPEB.., 40

N |

Notes to Required Supplementary Information ...
ADDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ..o £ 2
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet... s .43
Combining Statement of Revenues Expendltures and Changes in f‘und Balances RS- 1



2428 E. Grand River Ave,,
Suite 1, Lansing, M1 48912

M a n e r & 5173237500
COSte rlsan & 517.323.6346

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Township Board of the
Township of Holly
Oakland County, Michigan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Holly (the Township), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Township of
Holly’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Township of Holly, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditer’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Township
of Holly and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Township of Holly's ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not abselute assurance and therefore is nota
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements,

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we;
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Township of Holly’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Township of Holly's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the schedules for the other postemployment benefits plan,
as identified in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management ang, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the hasic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Township of Holly’s basic financial statements, The other supplementary information, as listed in the
table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements, Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

W aney Costocirnr Pc

November 5, 2024



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Township of Holly’s {the Township) financial performance provides an
overview of the Township’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Please read it in
conjunction with the Township’s financial statements,

Financial Highlights

As discussed in further detail in this discussion and analysis, the following represents the most significant
financial highlight for the year ended June 30, 2024:

» Property tax revenues are the Township's largest revenue source. Property tax revenue, at the
governmental fund level, for the year ended June 30, 2024, was approximately $1,686,000. The
Township's millage rate of 1,00 and 4.00 for operating and fire and emergency services, respectively,
stayed the same.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement
of activities provide information about the activities of the Township as a whole and present a longer-term view
of the Township's finances. This longer-term view uses the accrual basis of accounting so that it can measure
the cost of providing services during the current year, and whether the taxpayers have funded the full cost of
providing government services. The Fund financial statements present a short-term view; they tell us how the
taxpayers’ resources were spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending. Fund
financial statements also report the Township’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial
statements by providing information about the Township’s most significant funds,

Governmental Activities

The following tables show, in a condensed format, the current year’s net position and changes in net position
compared to the prior year:

June 30, 2024 June 33, 2023

ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 4,038,685 $ 3,638436
Capital assets, net 3,180,589 2,976,350
TOTAL ASSETS 7,219,274 6,614,786
LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities 187,500 225,000
Other liabilities 741,807 495 953
TOTAL LIABILITIES 929,307 720,953
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 13,615 3,901
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,993,089 2,751,350
Restricted 833,544 835,938
Unrestricted 2,449,719 2,302,645
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 6,276,352 $ 5,889,933




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
REVENUES

Program revenues
Charges for services $ 306,558 $ 237,913
Operating grants and contributions 17,025 79,397

General revenues
Property taxes 1,543,032 1,428,687
State shared revenue 658,828 647,029
Unrestricted investment earnings 122,635 47,915
Miscellaneous 13,117 43,166
TOTAL REVENUES 2,661,195 2,484,107
EXPENSES

General povernment 776,434 899,773
Public safety 1,274,050 1,044,802
Public works 181,577 281,000
Community and economic development 42,715 78,993
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,274,776 2,304,568
Change in net position 386,419 179,539
Net position, beginning of year 5,889,933 5,710,394
Net position, end of year $ 6,276,352 $ 5,889,933

The Township’s governmental net position increased 6.6% from a year ago, from approximately $5.89 million
to $6.28 million.

Total governmental revenues increased $177,088 or 7%. Increase in property taxes and investment earnings
primarily account for this change. Property taxes increased by 8%, as property values in 2024 increased
compared to 2023, Interest earnings increased in the current year due to increase in treasury rates.

The Township’s total governmental expenses decreased approximately $30,000 or 1% from the prior year.
Expenses remained consistent with the previous year.

The Township's Funds

Our analysis of the Township’s major funds begins on page 11, following the government-wide financial
statements, The fund financial statements provide detail information about the most significant funds, not the
Township as a whole. The Township Trustees create funds to help manage money for specific purposes as well
as to show accountability for certain activities, such as special property tax mileages. The Township had four
major governmental funds for the current year, the General Fund, Fire and Emergency Fund, Capital Projects

Fund, and Farmstead Capital Projects Fund,



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The General Fund pays for most of the Township's governmental services. However, the maost significant
governmental service within the General Fund is general government, which incurred expenditures of $865,083 in
2024, which was an increase of $112,173, or 15%, from 2023 due to vacancies in prior year, Total General Fund
revenues increased from a year ago by $64,595, due to increases in property tax values as well as interest income,
Total General Fund expenditures and other financing uses for 2024 were less than revenues and other financing
sources resulting in a increase in fund balance of $276,728. Ending fund balance was $1,686,934 of which
$210,685 was restricted or nonspendable, $448,333 was assigned for subsequent year’s expenditures, and the
remaining $1,027,916 was unassigned.

The Fire and Emergency fund balance decreased $10,127 from the previous year, This decrease is mainly due to
an increase in expenditures in the current year.

The Capital Projects fund balance increased $70,730 from the previous year due to transfer from general fund in
the current year,

The Farmstead Capital Projects fund balance decreased $147,853 from the previous year due to direct capital
expenditures incurred in the current year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

QOver the course of the year, the Township amended the budget to take into account events during the year related
to increase in tax hase and treasury rate for property tax revenue and interest rate for interest income. Actual
General Fund revenues totaled $1,489,161, or $56,848 under the final amended budget which was increased
from the original budget by $137,518. The most significant variation was in property taxes, which had an
increase in budget of $68,665 due to an increase in tax base.

The Township’s actual General Fund expenditures and other financing uses totaled $1,212,433, or $413,576 below
the final amended budget which was increased from the original budget by $137,518. The final budget planned for
a $80,000 decrease in fund balance. All departments, except for assessor, were able to underspend their budget so
overall expenditures were below the amended budget.

Capital Asset Administration

The Township's Investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2024, amounted to
$3,180,589 net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in
progress, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and office equipment and furniture. In 2024,
$252,641 of expenditures were capitalized in the government-wide financial statements for additions to
construction in progress related to the farmstead and Township hall as well as purchase of land and server. More
detailed information concerning capital assets can be found within Note 4 to the basic financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations

The Township’s ong-term debt consist of construction debt entered into during fiscal year 2020, which amounts
to $187,500 as of June 30, 2024. More detailed information can be found within Note 5 of the basic financial

statements.



TOWNSHIF OF HOLLY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

There are several economic factors that will challenge the Township in the next several years. These include state
revenue sharing not keeping up with inflation and property tax values. The Township’s tax base continues to
increase as the Township’s valuation and construction of new single family homes increase, Future construction
of new homes will continue to increase with future developments.

The Tewnship dees not consider it to be financially necessary to levy the maximum allowable millage.
These factors were considered in the preparation of the Township's fiscal year 2024-2025 budget,

Contacting the Township’s Management

The financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with a general
overview of the Township's finances and to show the Township's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact the Township of Holly

at 102 Civic Dr,, Helly, MI 48442,



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024
Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and investments $ 3,760,060
Accounts receivable 26,825
Due from others 110,203
Due from other governmental units 127,315
Prepaids 14,282
Total current assets 4,038,685

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets not being depreciated 2,729,144
Capital asset, net of accumulated depreciation 451,445

Total noncurrent assets 3,180,589

TOTAL ASSETS 7,219,274
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 126,222
Due to other governmental units 164,405
Due to others 229,400
Unearned revenue 205,975
Current portion of long-term debt 37,500
Total current liabilities 763,502
Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 150,600
Net OPEB liability 15,805
Total noncurrent liabilities 165,805
TOTAL LIABILITIES 929,307
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 13,615
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,993,089
Restricted
Public safety 637,141
Public, educational, and governmental (PEG) fees 98,559
97,844

Metro act funds

Unrestricted 2,449,719

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 6,276,352

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Program Revenues Net (Expense)}
Operating Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Changes in
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions in Net Position
Governmental activities
General government $ 776,434 $ 207,886 $ 17,025 $  (551,523)
Public safety 1,274,050 77,730 - (1,196,320)
Public works 181,577 11,771 - (169,806)
Community and economic development 42,715 9,171 - (33,544}
Total governmental activities § 2,274,776 $ 306,558 $ 17,025 (1,951,193}
General revenues

Property taxes 1,543,032

State shared reventie 658,828

Unrestricted investment earnings 122,635

Miscellaneous 13,117

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of the year

Net position, end of the year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

10

2,337,612

386,419

5,889,933

$ 6,276,352




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30,2024
Fire and Farmstead Total
Emergency Capital Capital Nonmajor
Special Projects Projects Governmental
General Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,757,716 $ 553,420 $ 746,389 $ 496,662 $ 205,873 § 3,760,060
Accounts receivable 18,342 - 4,385 2,230 1,868 26,825
Due from other funds 120,600 - - - - 120,000
Due from other governmental units 127,315 . B - - i27,315
Due from others 110,203 . " - - 110,203
Prepaids 14,282 - - - - 14,282
TOTAL ASSETS § 2,147,858 $ 553,420 § 750,774 § 498,892 $ 207,741 $ 4,158,685
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LTABILITIES
Account payable 3 67,119 $ 507 $ 843 $ 49,455 § 8,298 § 126,222
Due to other governmental units 164,405 - - - - 164,405
Due to others 229,400 - - - . 229,400
Due to other funds . 120,000 . - - 120,000
Unearned revenue - - - 205,975 - 205,975
TOTAL LIABILITIES 460,924 120,507 843 255,430 8,298 846,002
FUND RALANGES
Nonspendable
Prepaids 14,282 - - - - 14,282
Restricted
Public safety 66,670 432,913 - “ 137,558 637,141
PEG fees 98,559 - - - - 98,559
Metro act funds 97,844 . - - - 97,844
Assigned
Capital projects - - 749,931 243,462 61,885 1,055,278
Subsequent year's expenditures 448,333 - - - - 448,333
Unassigned 961,246 - - - - 961,246
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,686,934 432,913 749,931 243,462 199,443 3,312,683
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES § 2,147,858 § 553,420 § 750,774 $ 498,892 $ 207,741 $ 4,158,685

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
11



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30,2024

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is $ 4,577,064
Accumulated depreciation is {1,396,475)

Capital assets, net

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Long-term debt

OPEB-related amounts are not due and payable in the current period or do not
represent current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds,

Net OPEB liability
Deferred inflows related to the net OPEB liability

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
12

$ 3,312,683

3,180,589

(187,500)

(15,805)
(13,615)

$ 6,276,352




REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment income
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community and economic development
Capital outlay
Bebt service
Principal

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER} EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {JSES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

Fund balances, beginning of year

TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Fireand Farmstead Total
Emergency Capital Capital Nenmajor
Special Projacts Profects Governmental
General Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

§ 645032  § L,040726 § $ - 3 - $ 1685758
61,963 - - - 59,730 121,695
672,752 - - 17,025 - 689,777
18,696 - . - - 18,6986
68,082 6,484 25,283 15,904 6,882 122,635
22,634 - - - - 22,634
1,489,161 1,047,210 25,283 32,929 66,612 2,661,195
798,413 - - - - 798,413
66,670 1,057,337 - - 150,043 1,274,050
144,077 - - - - 144,077
42,715 - - - - 42,715

- - 16,082 180,782 - 196,864

37,500 - - - - 37,500
1,089,375 1,057,337 16,082 180,782 150,043 2,493,619
399,786 [10,127) 9,201 [147,853) (83431 167,576

- - 61,529 - 61,529 123,058
{123,058) - - - - {123,058)
{123.058) - 61,529 ~ 61,529 -
276,728 (10,127} 70,730 (147,853) (21,902} 167,576
1,410,206 443,040 679,201 391,315 221,345 3,145,107

$ 1,686,934 $ 432913 $§ 749,931 § 243462 $ 199,443 § 3,312,683

Fund balances, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

i3



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 3 167,576

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay $ 252,641
Depreciation expense (48,402)
Excess of capital outlay aver depreciation expense 204,239

Certain transactions related to long-term debt are reported as expenditures or other
financing sources/uses in governmental funds, but the borrowing increase long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position. In the current year, these amounts consist of:

Principal payment on long-term debt 37,500

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the funds.

Change in net OPEB liability (13,182)
Change in deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (9,714)
Change in net position of governmentat activities $ 386,419

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
14



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30,2024

ASSETS
Cash
Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Undistributed receipts

NET POSITION
Restricted for other postemployment benefits

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

15

Other Post- Tax
Employment Collection
Health Benefits Custodial
Trust Fund Fund
$ - $ 110,704
385,644 -
385,644 110,704
- 116,704

b 385,644 $ -




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

ADDITIONS
Collections of taxes for other governments
Investment income
TOTAL ADDITIONS
DEDUCTIONS
Payments of taxes collected for other governments
Administrative expenses
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS
CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

See accompanying noetes to financial statements,
16

Other Post- Tax
Employment Collection
Health Benefits Custodial
Trust Fund Fund
$ - $ 15,510,494
35,972 -
35,972 15,510,494
- 15,510,494
768 -
768 15,516,494
35,204 -
350,440 -
$ 385,644 3 -




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Located in Oakland County, Michigan, the Township of Holly {the Township} is incorporated as a general law
Township in which citizens elect the five-member Board of Trustees. Effective November 2024, the Township
approved to have a seven-member board. The Township is not included in any other governmental “reporting
entity”, as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), since Trustees are elected by the
public and have decision-making authority, the authority to levy taxes, the power to designate management, the
ability to significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. The Township
provides the following services to residents: general government, public safety, and highways and streets.

The financial statements of the Township have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The GASB is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The Township’s more significant accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the financial activities of the Township of Holly (primary government).

The inclusion of the activities of various agencies is based on the manifestation of oversight criteria, relying
on such guidelines as the selection of the governing authaority, the designation of management, the ability to
exert significant influence on operations, and the accountability for fiscal matters. The accountability for
fiscal matters considers the possession of the budgetary authority, the responsibility for surplus or deficit,
the controlling of fiscal management, and the revenue characteristics, whether a levy or a charge.
Consideration is also given to the scope of public service. The scope of public service considers whether the
activity is for the benefit of the reporting entity and /or its residents and is within the geographic boundaries
of the reperting entity and generally available to its citizens.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the financial statements of the Township of Holly contain all the
funds controlled by the Board of Trustees.

Fiduciary. Component Unit

The Other Postemployment Health Benefits Trust Fund was established to account for the assets set aside
to fund the Township of Holly’s other postemployment health benefit plan. The primary purpose of the
Trust is to provide the necessary funding for the retiree health insurance premiums provided to eligible
Township employees during retirement, The Trust was established through MERS Retiree Health Funding
Vehicle, with the Township’s Board serving as the trustees. The assets of the Trust are for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries, and the assets shall not be diverted to any other purchase
prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities. The assets are protected from any of the Township's creditors. The
Beoard has the ability to exercise oversight responsibility, specifically in the area of designation of

management.,

Related Organizations

Holly Township Parks and Recreation - Parks and Recreation is a legally separate organization established to
provide and maintain recreational programs and facilities for citizens of Holly Township. Parks and
Recreation is governed by an elected seven-member Board, Effective November 2024, Parks and Recreation
will have a five-member board. Separate audited financial statements for their most recent year ended June

30 are available at 5142 E. Holly Road, Holiy, Michigan 48442.

17



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued)

Related Orpanizations (continued)

Holly Township Library - the Library is a legally separate organization established to offer library services to
residents of Holly Township. The Library is governed by a five-member Board elected by the governing
body. Separate audited financial statements for their most recent year ended June 30 are available at 1116

N, Saginaw Street, Holly, Michigan 48442,

Basis of Presentation
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities (the government-wide financial statements)
present information for the primary government as a whole. All nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government are included {i.e., fiduciary fund activities are not included in the government-wide financial
statements). Interfund activity has been eliminated in the preparation of these statements.

The statement of activities presents the direct functional expenses of the primary government and the
program revenues that support them. Direct expenses are specifically associated with a service, program,
or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues are
associated with specific functions and include charges to recipients for goods or services that are restricted
to meeting the operational requirements of that function. Revenues that are not required to be presented
as program revenues are general revenues. This includes taxes, interest, unrestricted state revenue sharing
payments, and other general revenues and shows how governmental functions are either self-financing or

supported by general revenues.
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statements present the Township's individual major funds and aggregated nonmajor
funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary funds, even though
the Iater are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Township of Holly reports the following Major Governmental Funds:

The General Fund is the Township of Holly’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except for those that are required to be accounted for in another

fund.

The Fire and Emergency Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for the activities of the
Township's fire and emergency services, funded mainly with property tax revenues,

The Capital Project Fund is used to account for financing and construction of the Township’s major
equipment and building and improvements. Such capital projects are generally funded by transfers from
the General Fund.

The Farmstead Capital Project Fund is used to account for financing and construction of the Township's

farmstead building and improvements. Such capital projects are generally funded by outside
contributions and grants as well as transfers from the General Fund.

18



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued)

Basis of Presentation {continued)

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Additionally, the Township reports the following Fund Types:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital Project Funds are used to account for financing and construction related to the Township’s major
equipment and improvements related to road improvements. Such capital projects are generally funded

by transfers from the General Fund.

Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for
certain healthcare costs to retirees of the Township.

Custodial Funds are custodial in nature and are used to account for assets held by the Township as the
trustee or as the agent for others.

Measurement Focus

The government-wide and fiduciary financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus, similar to that used by business enterprises or not-for-profit organizations. Because
another measurement focus is used in the governmental fund financial statements, reconciliations to the
government-wide financial statements are provided that explain the differences in detail,

All governmental funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e, revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other

financing uses) in fund balance,

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless

of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
reventies are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual (when they become both “measurable”
and “available to finance expenditures of the cturent period”). The length of time used for “available” for
purposes of revenue recognition in the governmental fund financial statements is 60 days, Revenues that
are considered measurable but not available are recarded as a receivable and unavailable revenue.
Significant revenues susceptible to accrual are special assessments and certain intergovernmental revenues,
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for interest on long-term debt which is recorded when due.

19



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHEIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued)

Basis of Accounting {continued

If/when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Township’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed,

Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the accruat basis of accounting. Additions are recognized when
earned, and deductions are recognized when incurred.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets for the general and special revenue funds are adopted in compliance with Michigan Law.
The budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis, which is consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Township follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

a. PriortoJuly 1, the annual budgets are legally adopted at the activity level through passage of a Board
resolution after a public hearing is held to obtain taxpayer comments. After the budget is adopted,

all transfers of budgeted amounts between activities or any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of the fund or activity must be approved by the Township Board.

b. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.

c. The Township does not employ encumbrance accounting as an extension of formal budgetary
integration. Appropriations unused at June 30 are not carried forward to the following fiscal year.

d. Budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted or amended by the Township Board during
the year, Individual amendments were appropriately approved by the Township Board as required.

Cash

Cash includes amounts in demand deposit accounts and certificate of deposit and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition,

Investiments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates
fair value, Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales
price at current exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at

estimated fair value.

In accordance with Michigan Compiled Laws, the Township of Holly is authorized to invest in the following
investment vehicles:

a. Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or instrumentality of the
United States.

20



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments (centinued)

b. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a State or
nationally chartered bank or a State or Federally chartered savings and loan association, savings bank,
or credit union whose deposits are insured by an agency of the United States government and which
maintains a principal office or branch office located in this State under the laws of the State or the
United States, but only if the bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, or credit union is eligible
to be a depository of surplus funds belonging to the State under Section 6 of 1855 PA 105, MCL 21.146.

¢. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three highest classifications established
by not less than two standard rating services, and which matures not more than 270 days after the

date of purchase.

d. The United States government or federal agency obligations repurchase agreements.

e. Bankers' acceptances of United States banks,

f.  Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles which are legal for direct investment by local units
of government in Michigan.

Michigan Compiled Laws allow for collateralization of government deposits, if the assets for pledging are
acceptable to the State Treasurer under Section 3 of 1855 PA 105, MCL 21,143, to secure deposits of State
surplus funds, securities issued by the Federal Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage
Association, or Government National Mortgage Association.

Receivahles

Receivables have been recognized for all significant amounts due to the Township in accordance with the
accounting principles used for the particular fund. Valuation reserves have not been provided because
management believes collection is not considered doubtful and any uncollectible amounts would not be

considered significant.
Prepaids

Prepaid expenditures in the governmental funds are expected to be written off within the next fiscal year,
are included in current assets. Reported prepaid expenditures are equally offset by nonspendable fund
balance, which indicates they do not constitute “available spendable resources” even though they are a

component of fund balance.

Due from Other Governmental Units

Due from other governmental units consists of amounts due from the State of Michigan or other
governments for various payments and grants.

21



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded (net of accumulated depreciation, if applicable) in the government-wide financial
statements, Capital assets are those with an acquisition cost of at least $5,000 and an estimated useful life
of more than one year. Capital assets are not recorded in the governmental funds. Instead, capital
acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in the governmental funds, and the related assets
are reported in the government-wide financial statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost
where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition cost on the date received.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized. Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Building and improvements 20 - 50 years
Machinery and equipment 7-10 years
Office furniture and equipment 5- 10 years

Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recognized as a liability in the government-wide
financial statements when incurred. The portion of those Hahilities expected to be paid within the next year
is a current liability with the remaining amounts shown as long-term. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenses.

Unearned Revenue

The Township reports unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned.

Due to Others

Due to others consists of amounts due to other parties for various services incurred and escrows held by
Township,

Net OPEB Liabtlity

The Township records a net OPERB liability for the difference between the total OPEB liability and the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position. Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are included in deferred amounts
related to OPEB on the statement of net position,

22



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liahilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources, This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources {revenue) until that time, The Township has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category
which are future resources yet to be recognized in relation to other postemployment benefits calculation.

Details of Fund Balance Classifications

Fund balance classifications comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. The

following are the five classifications of fund balance under this standard:

Nonspendable - assets that are not available in a spendable form such as inventory, prepaid
expenditures, and long-term receivables not expected to be converted to cash in the near term. It also
includes funds that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as the corpus of a

permanent fund or foundation.

Restricted - amounts that are required by external parties to be used for a specific purpose. Constraints
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws, regulations or enabling legislation,

Committed - amounts constrained on use imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e, Board, Trustee, etc.).

Assigned - amounts intended to be used for specific purposes. This is determined by the governing body,
the budget or finance committee, or a delegated municipality official.

Unassigned - all other resources; the remaining fund balance after nonspendable, restrictions,
commitments, and assignments. This class only occurs in the General Fund, except for cases of negative
fund balances. Negative fund balances are always reported as unassigned, no matter which fund the

deficit occurs in.
Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures

For committed fund balance, the Township of Holly's highest level of decision-making authority is the Board
of Trustees. The formal action that is required to be taken to establish a fund balance commitment is a
resolution of the Board of Trustees. If a fund balance commitment is made, the commitment remains in

effect until a resolution is made to remove it,

For assigned fund balance, the Township has not approved a policy indicating who is authorized to assign
amounts to a specific purpose. In the absence of such a policy, the authority to assign fund balance remains

with the Board of Trustees.

When the Township incurs an expenditure for purposes for which various fund balance classifications can
be used it is the Township’s policy to use restricted fund balance first, then committed, assigned, and finally

unassigned.

23



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Restricted Net Position

Restrictions of net position shown in the government-wide financial statements indicate restrictions that
have been imposed by outside sources, which preclude a portion of net position from their use for
unrestricted purposes.

Property Taxes

The Township of Holly bills and collects its own property taxes. The Township of Holly's property tax
revenue recognition policy and related tax calendar disclosures are highlighted in the following paragraph:

Property taxes are levied by Township of Holly on December 1 on the taxable valuation of property
located in the Township as of the preceding December 31 {the lien date) and are payable without penalty
through February 14. These tax bills include the Township’s own property taxes and taxes billed on
behalf of Gakland County and the school districts within the Township boundaries. Taxes not collected
as of March 1 are turned over to Oakland County for collection, which advances the Township 100% for
the delinquent taxes, Collections and remittances of all taxes are accounted for in the Tax Collection
Custodial Fund.

The Township of Holly is permitted to levy taxes up to 1.2275 mills ($1.2275 per $1,000 of taxable valuation)
for general governmental services and 4.0000 mills ($4.00 per $1,000 of taxable valuation) for the fire and
emergency services, For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Township levied 1.0000 mills per $1,000 of
taxable valuation for general governmental services and 4.0000 mills per $1,000 of taxable valuation for the
fire and emergency services, The total taxable value for the 2023 levy for property within the Township of
Holly was $438,950,550. The assessed taxable value of real and personal property for the fire and
emergency services special assessments was $254,314,590.

Property taxes levied in December are recognized as revenues in the current fiscal year, Taxes collected on
behalf of the school districts and Oakland County are turned over to the districts and the County immediately
following collection and are accounted for in a designated custodial fund.

The Township's tax revente have been reduced by tax abatements but management has determined these
amounts to immaterial to the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting prineciples generally accepted in the United
States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

24




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2024, the Township had deposits and investments subject to the following risk:

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township's deposits may not be
returned to it. As of june 30, 2024, $731,812 of the Township's bank balance of $3,230,573 was exposed to
custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized. The carrying value on the books for
deposits at the end of the year was $3,230,573. The Township had $700 of imprest cash on hand.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Township will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside

party.
Interast Rate Risk

The Township has adopted a policy that indicates how the Township will minimize interest rate risk, which
is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates,
MERS total market portfolio are reported at their individual Net Asset Values. The weighted average
maturity for the underlying investments held by each portfolio is not calculated or provided by MERS.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Township has adopted a policy that indicates how the Township will minimize concentration of credit
risk, which is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Township's investment in a single issuer, by
diversifying the investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or
issuer will be minimized. Obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality.

Duein
Investment Type Fair Value No Maturity Due < 1 Year 1-5Years Moody Rating
Fixed Income
U.S. Government Bonds $ 639491 $ - % - § 639,491 n/a

Foreign Currency Risk

‘The Township is not authorized to invest in investments which have this type of risk.

25



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {continued)

Fair Value

The Township categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other ohservable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs, As ofyear
end, the Township's investments in U.S. Government bonds were considered to be Level 2 {fair value
determined based on matrix pricing method). Money market accounts are valued at amortized cost.

Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value Per Share

The Township holds shares or interest in MERS where the fair value of the investments in measure on a
recurring basis using net asset value per share (or its equivalent) of the investment companies as a practical
expedient. MERS invests assets in a manner which will seek the highest investment return consistent with
the preservation of principal and meet the daily liquidity needs of participants. MERS total market portfolio
are reported at their individual Net Asset Values.

At the year ended June 30, 2024, the fair value, unfunded commitments, and redemption rules of those
investments are as follows:

Redemption
Unfunded Frequency, Redemption
Investment Type Fair Value Commitments if Eligible Notice Period
Fiduciary Funds
MERS Total Market Portfolic $§ 385,644 $ - Norestrictions None

The following summarizes the categorization of deposits and investments as of June 30, 2024:

Statement of Net Position

Cash and investments $ 3,760,060

Statement of Fidueiary Net Position
Cash 110,704
Investments 385,644
Total $ 4,256,408

Deposits and Investments

Deposits
Checking and savings accounts $ 1,886,621
Certificate of deposits 1,295,000
Investments 1,074,087
Cash on hand 700
Total $ 4,256,408

26




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 3 - INTERFUND ACTIVITY
The amount of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2024, are as follows:

Due to General Fund from:
Fire and Emergency Fund $ 120,000

Amounts appearing as interfund payables and receivables arise from two types of transactions. One type of
transaction is where a fund will pay for a good or service that at least a portion of the benefit belongs to another
fund. The second type of transaction is where one fund provides a good or service to another fund. Balances at
the end of the year for transfers that have not cleared as of the balance sheet date,

The General Fund transferred $61,529 to the Capital Projects Fund and $61,529 to nonmajor governmental
funds for the purpese of current year capital outlay needs as well as preparing for needs in the future.

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30,2024
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated _
Land $ 977,117 $ 45,042 $ - $ 1,022,159
Construction in progress 1,510,021 196,964 - 1,706,985
Capital assets not being depreciated 2,487,138 242,006 - 2,729,144
Capital assets being depreciated
Infrastructure 375,000 - - 375,000
Buildings 613,919 - - 613,919
Machinery & Equipment 571,562 - - 571,562
Office Equipment & Furniture 283,104 10,635 (6,300) 287,439
Subtotal 1,843,585 16,635 {6,300) 1,847,920
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure {112,500} {37.500) - (150,000)
Buildings (605,607) {1,160) - {606,767)
Machinery & Equipment (356,732} (8,552) - (365,284)
Office Equipment & Furniture (279,534) (1,190) 6,300 (274,424)
Subtotal (1,354,373} (48,402) 6,300 (1,396,475)
Net capital assets being depreciated 489,212 (37,767) - 451,445
Total net capital assets $ 2,976,350 $ 204,239 % - $ 3,180,589

Depreciation expense was charged to the public works and general government functions in governmental
activities in the amount of $37,500 and $10,902, respectively.

27



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations (including current portion) of the Township for
the year ended June 30, 2024:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1,2023 Additions Deductions June 30, 2024 One Year
Direct placement
North Holly Road
Constructiondebt § 225000 % - § (37,500) § 187500 § 37,500

In 2020, the Township entered into an agreement with Oakland County for the North Holly Road construction
project where the Township agreed to contribute $375,000 toward the project divided into ten equal principal-
only installments of $37,500 through January 1, 2029. Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Amount
2025 $ 37,500
2026 37,500
2027 37,500
2028 37,500
2029 37,500
Total 3 187,500

The Township’s outstanding notes from direct borrowings and direct placements related to governmental
activities of $187,500 contains provisions that in an event of default, either by (1) unable to make principal or
interest payments (2) false or misrepresentation is made to the lender {3) become insolvent or make an
assignment for the benefit of its creditors (4] if the lender at any time in good faith believes that the prospect of
payment of any indebtedness is impaired. Upon the occurrence of any default event, the outstanding amounts,
including accrued interest become immediately due and payable.

NOTE 6 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The Township carries commercial insurance
to cover any potential claims associated with these risks and has had no claims that exceeded the insurance
coverage during the past three years.

28




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Township of Holly Group Pension Plan is a defined contribution pension plan, held in trust by an outside
third-party administrator.

Those eligible for the Plan include all elected officials, the Building Administrator and all other appointed officials
working 35 hours or more per week. The Township contributes 10% of a participant’s compensation. The
participants may make voluntary, after-tax contributions from 1% to 10% of their compensation. Total
contributions by the Township for the year ended June 30, 2024, were $39,750. There were six participants in
the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2024,

Benefits attributable to all contributions vest immediately, investment of plan assets is the responsibility of the
participant (e.g, self-directed investment of individual accounts by participants).

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The Township provides postemployment healthcare benefits to certain retirees under a single employer defined
benefit plan (the “Plan”), effective July 1, 2016, governed by the Township Board. Those eligible for the Plan
include any person who has continuously served the Township for a period of 25 years or more as an employee,
elected official, or both. Eligible retirees receive Township-paid health insurance following retirement from the
Township. The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial statement. As of June 30, 2024, the date of
the most recent alternative measurement method, the Plan covered six members, all active,

Benefits Provided and Contributions

The Township's contribution is based on projected pay-as-you go financing requirements. For the year ended
June 30, 2024, the Township did not make any contributions to the Plan. There are no contributions required

by the Plan participants,

Net OPEB Liability

The Township's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2024, and was determined using the atternative
measurement method, as permitted in GASB 75, as of that date.

29



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Changes in Net OPEB Liability

The components of the change in the net OPER liability are summarized as follows:

Plan Net OPER
Total OPEB Fiduciary Liability
Liability (a) Net Position (b} (a}- (b)
Balances at June 30, 2023 $ 353,063 $ 350,440 $ 2,623
Changes for the year
Service cost 16,065 - 16,065
Interest 14,304 - 14,304
Differences between expected and actual experience 18,017 - 18,017
Net investment income - 35972 (35,972)
Administrative expenses - {768) 768
Net changes 48,386 35,204 13,182
Balances at june 30, 2024 $ 401,449 $ 385,644 $ 15,805

Actuarial Assumptions
The net OPEB liability was determined using the alternative measurement method as of June 30, 2024 using the
following actuarial assumptions (which were determined by management utilizing the best infermation
available), applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Discount Rate - 3.875%

Inflation - 2,5%

Long-Term Rate of Return - 5.0%

Salary Increases - 3.0%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate - 4.70%, increasing 0.1% in year 2 then decreasing 0.1% each year until an
ultimate rate of 4.20% is achieved.

Retirement Age for Active Employees - Based on the historical average retirernent age for the covered group,
active OPEB Plan members were assumed to retire at age 65,

Mortality Tables - Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables, with mortality improvement
projected for 10 years.

Turnover - Turnover data was obtained from the U.S. Office of Personnel Management regarding the most
recent experience of the employee group covered by the Federal Employees Retirement System,

30




TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions {continved

Health Insurance Premiums - 2023 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as the basis for
calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Probability of Accepting Benefits - The probability of participants accepting benefits ance they meet the 25
year service requirement was assumed at 100%.

Future Contributions - It is assumed that future contributions to the plan will remain a level percent of the
total cost over time.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investinents was determined using a model method in
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net of investment and
administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Moderately conservative balanced 100.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Risk adjustment 0.00%
5.00%

Investment rate of return

Changes in Assumptions

There were no changes in assumptions during plan year 2024,

Changes in Benefits

There were o changes in benefit terms during plan year 2024.

Biscount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the net OPEB liability is 3.875% for 2024. The discount rate was based on a
bond yield of 3.50%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer
and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially determined
rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit

payments to determine the total OPER liability.

31



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Township, calculated using the discount rate of 3.875%, as
well as what the Township’s net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1% lower {2.875%) or 1% higher (4.875%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

$ 120598 $ 15805 $  (63,385)

Sensitivity of the Net OPER Liability {Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Township, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate of
4.70%, as well as what the Township's net OPEB liability {asset) would be if it were calculated using a healthcare
cost trend rate that is 1% lower {3.70%) or 1% higher (5.70%) than the current rate:

Current
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

$ (70,011) § 15,805 $ 130,214

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Township recognized OPER expense of $22,893.

The Township reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB for the net difference between projected
and actual earnings on plan investments in the amount of $13,615.

The amount reported as OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB expense as
follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Amount
2025 $ (8,758)
2026 4,137
2027 (5,301)
2028 {3,693)
Total $ {13,615)

32



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Township may be named as a defendant in various lawsuits and claims arising in the
normal course of operations. In the aggregate, these claims may seek monetary damages in significant amounts,
To the extent the outcome of such litigation has been determined to result in probably financial loss to the
Township, such loss has been accrued in the accompanying basic financial statements. Litigation where loss to
the Township is reasonable possible has not been accrued. In the apinion of management, the ultimate outcome
of these claims will not materlally affect the operations of the Township.

NOTE 10 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. This Statement requires that liabilities
for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that has been used
but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means, A liability should be recognized for leave that has not
been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b} the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave
is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means, This
Statement also establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave that has not been used, generally using an
employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial statements. The Township is currently evaluating the impact
this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the 2024-2025 fiscal year.

In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures. This Statement requires a
government to assess whether a concentration or constraint makes the government vulnerable to the risk of a
substantial impact. Additionally, this Statement requires a government to assess whether an event or events
associated with a concentration or constraint that could cause the substantial impact have occurred, have begun
to occur, or are more likely than not to begin to occur within 12 months of the date the financial statements are
issued. If a government determines that those criteria for disclosure have been met for a concentration or
constraing, it should disclose information in notes to financial statements in sufficient detail to enable users of
financial statements to understand the nature of circumstances disclosed and the government’s vulnerability to
the risk of substantial impact, The Township is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the
financial statements when adopted during the 2024-2025 fiscal year.

In April 2024, the GASB issued Statement No., 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements. This Statement
establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements - or modifies existing requirements - related

to the following:

a. Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A);
i.  Reguires that the information presented in MD&A be limited to the related topics discussed in
five specific sections: .
1} Overview of the Financial Statements,
2} Financial Summary,
3) Detailed Analyses,
4) Significant Capital Asset and Long-Term Financing Activity,
5) Currently Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions;
ii.  Stresses detailed analyses should explain why balances and results of operations changed rather
than simply presenting the amounts or percentages by which they changed;
iii. ~ Removes the requirement for discussion of significant variations between original and final
budget amounts and between final budget amounts and actual results;

. Unusual or infrequent items;
c.  Presentation of the proprietary fund statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position;

33



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 - UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

i, Requires that the proprietary fund statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net
position continue to distinguish between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses
and clarifies the definition of operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses;

iil.  Requires thata subtotal for operating income (loss) and noncapital subsidies be presented before
reporting other nongperating revenues and expenses and defines subsidies;

d. Information about major component units in basic financial statements should he presented separately
in the statement of net position and statement of activities unless it reduces the readability of the
statements in which case combining statements of should be presented after the fund financial
statements;

e. Budgetary comparisen information should include variances between original and final budget amounts
and variances between final budget and actual amounts with explanations of significant variances
required to be presented in the notes to RSL

The Township is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when
adopted during the 2025-2026 fiscal year.

In September 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, This Statement
requires certain types of capital assets to be disclosed separately in the capital assets note disclosures required
by Statement No, 34, Lease assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 87, Leases, and intangible right-
to-use assets recognized in accordance with Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangernents, should be disclosed separately by major class of underlying asset in the
capital assets note disclosures. Subscription assets recognized in accordance with Statement No.
96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, also should be separately disclosed. In addition,
this Statement requires intangible assets other than those three types to be disclosed separately by major class.
This Statement also requires additional disclosures for capital assets held for sale. The Township is currently
evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted during the 2025-2026

fiscal year.

34



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

35



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 578,169 % 646,834 $ 645,032 3 (1,802}
Licenses and permits 69,500 69,500 61,965 (7,535}
intergevernmental 647,776 649,329 672,752 23,423
Charges for services 15,789 15,789 18,696 2,907
[nvestment income 21,000 83,800 68,082 (15,718)
Other 76,257 80,757 22,634 {58,123}
TOTAL REVENUES 1,408,491 1,546,009 1,489,161 (56,848)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Board of trustees 10,760 10,760 4,441 6,319
Supervisor 92,080 92,650 90,695 1,955
Elections 46,000 46,000 8,175 37,825
Assessor 98,000 98,000 98,065 (65)
Clerk 152,410 152,410 85,285 67,125
Board of review 5,550 5,550 1,205 4,345
Treasurer 141,915 142,605 140,458 2,147
General services 524,864 555,122 366,849 188,273
Other 8,125 8,125 3,240 4,885
Total general government 1,079,704 1,111,222 798,413 312,809
Public safety
Public safety department - 66,670 66,670 -
Public works
Department of public works 212,000 241,830 144,077 97,753
Community and economic development
Community development 109,287 112,399 42,715 69,684
Debt service
Principal 37,500 37,500 37,500
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,438,491 1,502,951 1,089,375 480,246
EXCESS OF REVENUES GVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (30,000) 43,058 399,786 356,728
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out (50,000} (123,058) (123,058)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (80,000} {80,000) 276,728 356,728
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,410,206 1,410,206 1,410,206 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,330,206 § 1,330,206 $ 1,686,934 $ 356,728

36



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
FIRE AND EMERGENCY FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,069,780 § 1,040,726 $ 1,040,726 $ -
Interest 20 6,042 6,484 442
TOTAL REVENUES 1,069,800 1,046,768 1,047,210 442
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
Contracted services 1,056,000 1,056,000 1,056,000 -
Other 800 1,500 1,337 163
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,056,800 1,057,500 1,057,337 163
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES 13,000 (16,732) {10,127} 605
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES}
Transfers in 39,200 - {39,200)
Transfers out - {28,468) - 28,468
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) - 10,732 - (10,732)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 13,000 - (10,127} (16,127)
Fund balance, beginning of year 443,040 443,040 443,040
Fund balance, end of year $ 456,040 $ 443,040 $ 432,913 $§  (10,127)

37



8¢

‘parussaud aq [im e1ep Jo siead uey ‘Apiewnyn Apansadsoxd

Mmq Butaq st ANPIYOS SIYL "6TOZ L84 [edsy ut Isny oyl Suipury ueSaq pue pajeald diysumoy I pue /107 eak [edsy ul pajuswaldiul Sem G/ gSyn

%¥0'Z8T %09%'58Z %.68E- %B80°8¥% %E6'TT- ST %680 GL6'E nouded safojdua-passaos 3o s8euasiad

e se Lprqey (39sse) g240 194 5, diysumo],

LBE'E6  $  [BE'E6 §  S5TS6  $ PICIET $  ZLEDOE § AEL0SE § TSL'E6T & 959746E 1o1£ed 2afoidura-patancy

%000 %0070 %rLSTT %¥S T8 %ET LT %L9FOT %9266 %90°96 A3II9RY 8940 [#103 jo a9ejuaniad

e se uonsod 3au ATepanpy uelg

T6E'E9Z $  ¥85997 ¢ (ZzviE)l §  zEvEe  $  (ee8SE) ¢ (59S+L)  §  £29€ [ 508°ST % Aapqel| (aesse) gg40 394 s, digsumo],

- $ - 5 BIOELZ § LB8'BLZ & EQL9SE  § 01L'9Z¢ % 0¥¥°0SE  § PP9'SBE  § aeaf Jo pua ‘uonsod Jou Arepnpy ey
- - - 8T0'ELT £88'8L2 £0L'95E 0TZ9ZE 0¥F'05E zead 3o Jurmmdag ‘wonsod 19u Lrepnpy ueyy
- - 8T0°ELT 698'S 918 LL (£66'62) 0ELET ¥DZT'SE uenisod 19u Arepapry werd uy aSueys 19N
- - - - (225] (GEE)] (919} (892) sasuadxa aanensumupy
- - (655°2) (es5'2) - - - - siusmed 1yausg
- - ¥eH'9 698'S E6E8L (esg'62) 9¥EYT ZLE'SE (SsOT) SUOIT JURUNSIATL 1D
- $ - $ EYTVLE % 6552 $ - £ - $ - $ - $ suopngLnued 1akoyduy

tonsod 1au A1epnpL Uey

6€€92 % ¥8999Z $ 968587 $ 6I0Z¥E § 0I8NZE  § SYLZIE  § £90°€SE % 6¥¥10%Y  § Iead 1o pus "MMoel gado (=0

- ZEE'EST ¥85997 9685EZ 6TOZHE 0I80ZE SYIZ1E £90°ESE Teaf yo Sunudaq “Giiqen g340 [0,
165597 76T (889°0¢) £21'901 (60277) (5998} BI6 0¥ 9BEBY AYaey 4940 12103 Ul aSuryo 19N
(655°2] (6S5'L} (65572) (655°2] - - - - suopnquEed 324oydura jo
spunyal gurpniour ‘snusuiied jgausy
- - - - lozeztn) - - - saduer)s oyyderdowap/Hrouos 36 wagy
- - - - 90828 (s99'6£) (e¥0'zE) - suondumsse u1 safueys jo Vayy
- (sgee1) (z¥8'9%) 892°9L - LEQ'S STHSY L1081 axuaLtadx? emuoe pue paivadxa UaaMIaL S9aUa Iy
- ¥92'6 9.Z'0T £L£°7T S9LET L68'6 L8YTT ¥0EDT 1s3a10]
186047 §  ZLEPE § LEFET $ TWO'ST § ORO'SE $ 0 990'T § S90'0T & SOU9T % 1800 201AI8g
A3Mqen 4340 el
ZT0z 8102 61027 0Z0zZ TZ0Z 20T €202 +Z0Z

(MVIX TVISLE HOVH 40 0€/9 0 SV QINIWNALAA THIM SINNOWY)

(AAAVIASIA AH TIIM SAVAX TVISTA NLL ATILVIWLLTN) SYVAA TVISIA LHOII LSV
SOLLVY @3Lv13d ANV (LASSV) ALITIEVIT 9940 LAN S.dIHSNMOL NI STONVHD 10 T1NAIHIS
NV'1d SLIAANAS LINTWAOTdWIA-LSOd YTHLO
ATIOH 10 dTHSNMOL



6E

‘pPaIuasald aq [Im e3ep Jo sIeak uay ‘Aieremmyn Ajpamoadsoxd
NG Furaq ST aMpaYds Sy ‘6107 Ieak [easy ut 3snn sy Surpury uedaq pue payeasd drysumo], 9 PUE £T0Z 1234 [e3sYy uy pajustusjdun sem asvo
%8 LBZ %48’ %00 %00 %00 %00 Tfo1fed sa4ordma-paIeaod Jo sdejusstad se SUORNYLIUGY

§52's6 §  FIETET § ZLE00E ¢ LEL'OSE $  ISL'E6T  $ 959°46E ¢ llo1£ed safordwra-pasaaosy
{£68'992] $ £LE62 § - § - 3 - $ - $ (ssaoxa) Adualoysp monngrouon
SPITLZ 6557 Z Z - - UoanqLumuod pautulzlap A[[ELEnRIOE 31 03 UONE[BI U] SUCHNGLILOY)
052’z 3 ZE6TE  $ - $ - $ - $ - $ UORNGLIOU0D DIUMULIIRP A[RLienioy
6102 0Z0Z 1202 z202 £202 %202

(8vax TvISId HOVE 40 0£/9 0 SV AANIWNILLIA THIM SLNNOWV)
(QIAVIdSIA T TTIM SUVIA TVISII NALL ATILVIWILTN) STLVA INFWTANSVAI XIS LSV
SNOLLOGTILNOY dIHSNMOL 40 F1AIHDS
NY'Id SLIJANIE INTIWAOTdINI-1SOd WIHLO
ATIOH 40 dTHSNMO.L



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
LAST SIX MEASUREMENT DATES
(ULTIMATELY TEN FISCAL YEARS WILL BE DISPLAYED)

Annual
Maoney-Weighted
Rate of Return,
Net of
Year Ended Investment

June 30, Expense
2024 9.57%
2023 7.01%
2022 -8.78%
2021 24.50%
2020 2.36%
2019 3.21%

GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2017 and the Township created and began funding the trust in fiscal
year 2019. This schedule is being built prospectively. Ultimately, ten years of data will be presented.

40



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTE 1 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
Changes in Assumptions: There were no changes in assumptions during plan year 2024,
Changes in Benefits: There were no changes in benefit terms during plan year 2024.
Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:
Alternative measurement method date: June 30, 2024

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Every-age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll

Remaining amortization period 20 years

Asset valuation method 5-year smooth market

Investment rates of return 5.00%

Salary rate increase 3.00%

Inflation 2.50%

Discount rate 3.875%

Normal retirement age Age 65

Healthcare cost trend rate 4.70%, increasing 0.1% in year 2 then decreasing 0.19% each
year until an ultimate rate of 4.20% is achieved,

Mortality tables Pub-Z2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables, with

mortality improvement projected for ten years.

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The Township’s budgeted expenditures have been shown at the activity level. The approved budget for the
Township have been adopted at the activity level.

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Township incurred expenses in excess of the amounts appropriated as
follows:

Amounts Amounts
Appropriated Expended Variance
General Fund
Current
General government
Assessor $ 98,000 $ 98,065 $ 65

41



ADDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

42



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue

Capital Project

Road
Building Improvement
Department Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 144,174 $ 61,699 205,873
Accounts receivable 1,682 186 1,868
TOTAL ASSETS $ 145,856 $ 61,885 207,741
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Account payable $ 8,298 % - B,298
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Public safety 137,558 - 137,558
Assigned
Capital projects - 61,885 671,885
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 137,558 61,885 199,443
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 145,856 $ 61,885 207,741

43



TOWNSHIP OF HOLLY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMA]JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Capital Project

Road
Building Improvement
Department Fund Total
REVENUES
Licenses and permits $ 59,730 § - % 59,730
Investment income 6,526 356 6,882
TOTAL REVENUES 66,256 356 66,612
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety 150,043 - 150,043
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES {OVER)
UNDER EXPENDITURES (83,787) 356 (83,431)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - 61,529 61,529
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (83,787) 61,885 (21,502)
Fund balances, beginning of year 221,345 - 221,345
Fund balances, end of year $ 137,558 3 61,885 3 199,443

44




H T George A, Kaliis, Supervisor

Office of the Clerk Karin 8. Winchester, Clerk
248-634-9331 ext. 301 Mark Freeman, Treasurer
Fax: 248-634-5482 Patrick Feeney, Trustee
H Ouy iy ovmnhip Steve Rath, Trustee
102 Civie Drive
Holly, MI 48442

(248) 634-0331

RESOLUTION 2024 -25
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES FOR WIRELESS FACILITIES, WIRELESS
SUPPORT STRUCTURES, AND UTILITY POLES IN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2024, the Holly Township Board of Trustees adopted an
Ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances, to change the title of Chapter 26 to “Right-of-Way
Management,” and add new Articles III and IV to establish requirements, standards, and regulations
for access to and use of public right-of-way for wireless facilities that are not telecommunication
facilities, to specify the permits required for construction of telecommunications and wireless facilities
in a public right-of-way, and provide penalties for violations of the added articles; and

WHEREAS, the Ordinance requires the payment of certain permit application, review and
inspection fees, and recurring annual fees in amounts established by Township Board Resolution; and

WHEREAS, just as the Ordinance was adopted in response differing State and Federal
regulations without waiving the Township's constitutional and proprietary rights and interests in its
public right-of-way, in adopting this Resolution to establish the fees as called for by the Ordinance, the
Township Board is not waiving those rights and interests in attempting to comply with the directives
and guidance provided by those State and Federal regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Township does not accept that the maximum annual fees for collocation in a
public right-of-way established under Michigan Public Act No. 365 of 2018 ("Act" ) are fair and
reasonable or a reasonable approximation of the Township's costs of maintaining, protecting, and
managing its public right-of-way, including accurate records of all installations within it, which will
only increase with the large number of wireless facilities, wireless support structures, and new and
replacement utility pole deployments expected; and

WHEREAS, under the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") Rules and Declaratory
Ruling identified in the Ordinance, the overall height of wireless support structures or utility poles and
collocated simall wireless facilities required to be approved, and the recurring annual fees recognized
as presumptively valid, are each higher than allowed by the Act. The Township reasonably
approximates that its annual costs of maintaining, protecting, and managing its public right-of-way for
each small wireless facility in it will be greater than the annual fees under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Township has reason to believe that on the March 12, 2019, effective date of
the Act, there were collocations of wireless facilities on wireless support structures and utility poles in
the public right-of-way that the Township has no record of, for which the non-discriminatory annual
fee required by the Ordinance and this Resolution should be paid; and

Holly Township Resolution 2024-25 Page | of 5






H T George A. Kullis, Supervisor

Office of the Clerk Karin §. Winchester, Clerk
248-634-9331 ext. 301 Mark Freeman, Treasurer
Fax: 248-634-5482 Patrick Feeney, Trustee
}Iolly To l!ip Steve Ruth, Trustee
1032 Civic Drive
Holly, MI 48442

(248) 634-9331

WHEREAS, the Township does not accept that the maximum permit application fees
established under the Act will cover the Township's administrative and possible consultant costs to
propetly review and act on each permit application within the varying times allowed by the State and
Federal regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Township believes that from an administrative efficiency perspective, the use
of a single permit application for multiple collocations as allowed by the Act and Ordinance, and
encouraged by the FCC Rules and Declaratory Ruling, should be encouraged as a way to help limit the
Township's costs and provide an incentive approach for undocumented collocations by a wireless
provider to be permitted on an after-the-fact basis; and

WHEREAS, although the Ordinance calls for annual fees to be paid prior to permit issuance,
for administrative efficiency the Township has determined to have all subsequent annual fees by
wireless providers payable in advance prior to January 1 of each calendar year, with the amount of the
annual fee paid prior to permit issuance to be prorated from the date of payment through the end of the
calendar year; and

WHEREAS, although this Resolution has been adopted with the intention of establishing fees
consistent and in compliance with differing State and Federal regulations, the Township recognizes
that there should be a procedure available for wireless providers to challenge or request a waiver or
modification of a fee; and

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Township Board hereby establishes the following fees to
be payable to the Township under Article III, Use of Public Ways by Wireless Facility Providers, in
Chapter 26, Right-of-Way Management, of the Holly Township Code of Ordinances:

PERMIT APPLICATION FEES
New Collocations, Eligible Facilities Requests, and New or Replacement Utility Poles

Single collocation of small wireless facility on existing structure or utility pole $200.00

Single collocation of small wireless facility and new or replacement structure or

utility pole $300.00
Eligible Facilities Request $200.00
Collocation of other than small wireless facility on existing structure or utility pole $ 300.00
New and Replacement Utility Poles not involving small wireless facilities $ 500.00

Holly Township Resolution 2024-25 Page 2 of 5






George A. Kullis, Supervisor
Karin 8. Winchester, Clerk
Mark Freeman, Treasurer
Patrick Feeney, Trustee
Steve Ruth, Trustee

Office of the Clerk
248-634-9331 ext. 301
Fax: 248-634-5482

Holly Township
102 Civie Drive
Holly, MI 48442

(248) 634-9331

Multiple collocations of at least 5 substantially similar small wireless facilities on

similar structures or utility poles by same wireless provider. (*Amount is for each

collocation up to 20; fee for 20 collocations would be $2,000.00) $ 100.00*
Collocations in existence on March 11, 2019

Single collocation of wireless facility on existing structure or utility pole $200.00
Muitiple collocations of substantially similar wireless facilities on similar structures

or utility poles by same wireless provider. (* Amount is for each collocation up to 20;
fee for 20 collocations would be $2,000.00.) $ 100.00*

ANNUAL FEES FOR EACH WIRELESS FACILITY AT A LOCATION

Collocations of wireless facilities that existed on March 11, 2019, as documented

in Township records or by an after-the-fact permit application filed no later than

June 30, 2019. (The annual fee for collocations not documented to have existed as

required shall be $125 for collocation on structures or poles not more than 40 feet in

height and $270 for collocation on structures and poles exceeding 40 feet in height.) $ 20.00

Collocations of small wireless facilities on structures or utility poles not exceeding
40 feet in height that existed on March 11, 2019. $ 20.00

Collocations of small wireless facilities on structures or utility poles that did not exist
on March 11, 2019, and do not exceed 40 feet in height. $125.00

Collocations of small wireless facilities on structures or utility poles that did not exist
on March 11, 2019, and that exceed 40 feet in height, $270.00

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the annual fees shall be paid in advance on a calendar year basis,
with the amount of the annual fee that must be paid prior to permit issuance to be a prorated amount of
the annual fee in the above schedule, representing the portion of the year from the date of payment
through the end of the calendar year, with all subsequent annual fees payable in advance prior to
January 1 of each calendar year.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that there shall be no proration of the annual fees to be paid for
collocations of wireless facilities that existed on March 11, 2019, and that the first payment of those
fees shall be made on or before June 30, 2019,

Holly Township Resolution 2024-25 Page 3 of 5






George A. Kullis, Supervisor
Karin S. Winchester, Clerk
Mark Freeiman, Treasurer
Patrick Feeney, Trustee
Steve Ruth, Trustee

Office of the Clerk
248-634-9331 ext. 301
Fax: 248-634-5482

Holly Township
102 Civie Drive
Helly, MY 48442

(248) 634-0331

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that an administrative late charge equal to 5% of an annual fee that is
not paid by the date it is due shall be payable to the Township within one month of the due date, and
that for each month or portion of a month after that that the annual fee remains delinquent, an additional
1% administrative late charge shall be payable to the Township.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that a wireless provider directly affected by a fee established by this
Resolution may file a written challenge to or request for waiver or modification relief from the fee with
the Township Clerk for placement on the next available Township Board regular meeting Agenda for
consideration, with the following procedures and standards to apply:

1. The filing of a challenge or request for relief does not suspend the obligation to pay the fee.

2. A challenge or request for relief must demonstrate that the fee prohibits or has the effect of
prohibiting the wireless provider from providing personal wireless services contrary to Federal law,
that the fee is discriminatory and not a reasonable approximation of the Township's objectively
reasonable costs under Federal law, or that the fee is otherwise in violation of State or Federal law.

3. A challenge or request for relief shall identify the Federal and State laws upon which it is
based and identify what the wireless provider claims the Township must do to bring the fee into
compliance with those laws.

4. The Township Board shall provide a wireless provider filing a challenge or request for relief
with an opportunity to be heard at a Township Board meeting, after which the Township Board shall
make a decision on the challenge or request. The Township Board's decision shall be placed in written
form, which may be at a meeting subsequent to when the decision was made.

5. In making its decision on a challenge or request for relief from a fee, the Township Board
shall consider each claim presented by the wireless provider and may consider other factors consistent
with the State and Federal laws the Township is attempting to comply with or that are based on the
Township's Ordinances and rights and interests in the public right-of-way.

ADOPTED by the Holly Township Board of Trustees this 20" day of November 2024.

Motion by:
Supported by:
Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Holly Township Resolution 2024.25 Page 4 of §






Office of the Clerk
248-634-9331 ext. 301
Fax: 248-634-5482

Holly Township
102 Civic Drive
Holly, MY 48449
(248) 634-9331

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss
COUNTY OF OAKLAND )

Clerk’s Certificate

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township of Holly, Oakland
County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution

George A. Kullis, Supervisor
Karin S. Winchester, Clerk
Mark Freeman, Treasurer
Patrick Feeney, Trustee
Steve Ruth, Trustee

duly adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on the 20" day of November, 2024,

at which meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file
in the records in my office; (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given,

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan,

1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have been made

available as required thereby.

Karin S. Winchester, MMC
Holly Township Clerk
Oakland County, Michigan

Holly Township Resolution 2024-25

Page Sof §






Office of the Clerk H T George A. Kullis, Supervisor
Karin 8. Winchester, Clerk
Jennifer Ryan, Treasurer
Derek Burton, Trustee
Hﬂuy Tomhip Steve Ruth, Trustee
102 Civic Drive
Holly, MI 48442
{248) 634-0331

RESOLUTION 2024-26:
HOLLY AREA YOUTH ASSISTANCE MEMBER APPROVAL

WHEREAS, Holly Area Youth Assistance has been a primary prevention program serving and
located in the geographic area of the Holly Area School District since 1963; and

WIHEREAS, it is augmented by contributions from the Townships of Groveland, Holly, Rose and
Springfield; the Village of Holly, and the Oakland County Circuit Court - Family Division which
permits operation of an office with casework staff; and

WHEREAS, the efforts of numerous citizen volunteers provide significant service to the youth of the
greater Holly area in projects promoting the prevention of juvenile delinquency, child neglect and

child abuse;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Holly Township Board of Directors hereby
supporis the Holly Area Youth Assistance Board of Directors and approves it's following new

member: Sydney Sinclair.

ADOPTED by the Holly Township Board of Trustees this 20™ day of November 2024.

Motion by:
Supported by:
Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss
COUNTY OF OAKLAND )
Clerk's Certificate

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township of Holly, Oakland County,
Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a rue and complete copy of a resolution duly adopted by
the Township Board at a regular meeting held on the 20" day of November, 2024, at which meeting a quorum
was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereaf is on file in the records in my office; (3} the
meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open
- Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were
kept and wili be or have been made available as required thereby.

Karin S. Winchester, MMC
Holly Township Clerk
Oakland County, Michigan



Holly Area Youth Assistance
14470 N. Holly Road Holly, MI 48442

Holly Area Phone: {248) 328-3185
Stangihiring Fames Email: HAYA4Klds63@gmail.com

Through Coemmurely Farhemenst

10/22/2024

Dear Holly Township Board Members,

During our October Board of Directors meeting, the Holly Area Youth Assistance Board of Directors
reviewed and approved the following volunteer to be a HAYA Board of Directors member.

Sydney Sinclair —-Family School Liaison for Holly Area Schools

Per Youth Assistance policy, we are to inform the Holly Township Board Members of the approved
volunteers to the HAYA Board of Directors and request formal approval from your board. In reviewing
our files, we have found the following proclamation, which you may choose to follow or create one of
your originations:

PROPOSAL TO APPROVE HOLLY AREA YOUTH ASSISTANCE VOLUNTEERS TO THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS WHEREAS, the Holly Area Youth Assistance program in the Village of Holly is
augmented by contributions from the local Townships of Groveland, Holly, Rose, and Springfield.
Holly Area Community Schools, and Qakland County Circuit Court — Family Division which permits
the operation of an office with casework staff and WHEREAS, the efforts of numerous citizen
volunteers provide significant service to the youth of the Charter Township of Holly, the Village of
Holly, Groveland Township, Rose Township, Springfield Township, and Holly Community Schools in
projects promoting the prevention of juvenile delinquency, child neglect, and child abuse.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Holly Township Board does at this moment approve
and support the Holly Area Youth Assistance volunteer appointed at the Board of Directors being:

Sydney Sinclair HFamily School Liaison for Holly Area Schools

Please contact me with any questions and your responses by November 28, 2024.

Sincerely,

Joww FHlyavadss

Christine (Tena) Alvarado
HAYA Board President
Mobile #: (810) 955-6800

% % Strengthening Youth and Families through Community Involvement ¥ * ¥



H T George A, Kullis, Supervisor

Office of the Clerk Karin 8. Winchester, Clerk

248-634-9331 Vacancy, Treasurer
Fax: 248-634-5482 Derek Burton, Truslce
H olly T ownship Steve Ruth, Trustee
102 Civic Drive
Holly, M1 4844 %

(248) 634-9331

RESOLUTION 2024-27:
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)

WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to meet application
requirements for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other
Community Planning and Development; and

WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG -~ Eligible projects from participating
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Holly has duly advertised and held a public hearing on November
20, 2024 for the purpose of receiving public comments regarding the proposed use of 2025
Program Year Community Development Block Grant Funds in the approximate amount of
$22,163.00; and

WHEREAS, the township of Holly found that the following projects, in the approximate amount
of $22,163.00, meet the federal objectives of the CDBG program and are prioritized by the
community as high priority need.

Account #172160-730137-40620: Services for Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence,
Sexual Assault or Stalking (HAVEN) § 3,324.00

Account # 730898: O.C. Home Improvement Program § 18,839.00

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Holly Township Board of Trustees hereby
approves the 2025 Program year CDBG Application and Subrecipient Agreement and authorizes
the application to be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in the Qakland County’s Action
Plan fo the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Holly Township Board of Trustees hereby authorizes
the Holly Township Clerk to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts which result from
this application to Oakland County.

ADOPTED by the Holly Township Board of Trustees this 20" day of November 2024.

Motion by:
Supported by:
Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

HOLLY TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION 2024-27 Page 1 of 2



H T George A. Kuilis, Supervisor

Office of the Clerk Karin 8. Winchester, Clerk
248-634-9331 Vacancy, Treasurer
Fax: 248-634-5482 Derek Burton, Trustee
]E[olly Township Steve Ruth, Trustee
102 Civic Drive
Holly, MT1 484492

(248) 634-0331

Certification

1 The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township of Holly, Oakland Couniy,
Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of Resolution 2024-27 duly adopted
by the Township Board at a reguiar meeting held on the 20* day of November, 2024at which meeting a quorum
was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the records in my office; (3) the
meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open
Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were
kept and will be or have been made available as required thereby.

Karin S. Winchester, MMC
Holly Township Clerk
Oakland County, Michigan

HOLLY TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION 2024-27 Page 2 of 2



HAVEN

LIVE WITHOUT FEAR

October 4, 2024

Karin Winchester
Twp of Holly

102 Civic Dr

Holly, Ml 48442-1505

Dear Karin

As the landscape of funding for vital community programs shifts, HAVEN understands the recent changes in the Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) to support only two programs rather than the four previously funded makes for a hard decision for the community of
Twp of Holly. While these changes mean that funds may not directly flow into multiple community-based initiatives as before, the support
for survivors of intimate partner violence and sexual assault remains more eritical than ever. The assistance provided through CDBG funding
still plays a crucial role in enhancing the safety and well-being of survivors within our community, helping to build a safer environment for all

residents.

Imagine escaping violence with nothing but the clothes on your back. For many survivors, that is their reality. Through your support, we can
provide them with the resources to not only overcome their circumstances but to build new, thriving lives. HAVEN is here to ensure that
every survivor gets a chance to heal—but we can only continue this vital work with your help,

Domestic violence and sexual assault affect hundreds of thousands of people annually. In Michigan alone, | in 3 famifies are impacted by these
forms of abuse. Think about that for a moment. These aren’t just numbers—they represent your neighbors, co-workers, friends, and loved
ones. The impact of domestic violence reaches into every corner of our society, affecting people from all walks of life, No part of our
community is immune. As we continue to battle the pervasive effects of domestic and sexual violence, financial resources are essential to

meet the growing demand for services. The work we do cannot stand alone.

HAVEN plays an essential role in a survivor's journey. Supporting HAVEN means supporting survivors. With critical funding decisions at all
turns there are many ways to get involved:

*  Financial contributions allow us to sustain and expand our services.
*  VYolunteering your time can directly impact the lives of those we serve.
*  Hosting events in partnership with HAVEN helps spread awareness and build connections.

By standing together, we can create a community where domestic violence is not tolerated, where survivors are supported, and where every
individual has the opportunity to five free from fear. From July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 HAVEN supported survivors from Twp of Holly

in the following ways:

Total Individuals from Twp of Holly* 22

Crisis Calls from Twp of Holly* i6
*Confidentiality and anonymity are vital for our dients. The numbers provided cbove are based on seifidentified demographics and limited to onfy those dients who chose to share
that information. For reference, during that some time frome HAVEN assisted 3328 individuals of which 2085 seifidentified from Oakland County. During this same reporting

beriad HAVEN received 10,612 calls to our crisis fine,

Will you believe survivors? Will you stand with us in this fight? Will you help us celebrate 50 years of HAVEN by ensuring
that we can continue this worl for the next 50 with a Community Development Block Grant of 80007

Sincerely,

@ﬁmﬁ‘ml{r)

Patricia Hoskins
Director of Quality Assurance and Administration
phoskins@haven-oakland.org, 248-334-1284 ext. 305

801 Vanguard Drive, Pontiac, MI 48341  Phone (248) 334-1284 Fax (248) 334-316] www.haven-oakland.org
Crisis and Support (248) 334-1274 or (877) 922-1274






